Greater Cleveland 1240 West 6th Street
Regional Transit Authority Cleveland, Ohio 44113-1302
Phone: 216-5666-5100

riderta.com

MEETING NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the following meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority will take place on Tuesday, May 21, 2024 in the Board Room of the
Authority, 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, OH 44113 for consideration of the listed items and
such other items that may properly come before the Board and be acted upon. This meeting will
be live streamed on RTA's Board Page www.RideRTA com/board via the meeting date for staff
and members of the public. Members of the public may attend in person.

The meeting package will be posted on RTA's website at (www.riderta.com/board), on RTA's
Facebook page, and RTA's Twitter page.

9:00 AM. Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee
s Quarterly Management Report - Review of 1% Quarter 2024 results.
¢ TRACTION Results Reporting - Presentation of 1% Quarter 2024 scorecards,
customer experience surveys and community value surveys.

Committee of The Whole
e Internal Audit Report - Presentation of 1% Quarter 2024 Internal Audit Report.
= Capital Improvement Plan — Revisions to proposed FY 2025-2029 CIP.

Board of Trustees Meeting — Agenda attached.

P —m
ndia L. Birdsong Terry Jf

General Manager, Chief Executive Officer

IBT:tab
Attachment

Scan this QR code to access the meeting schedule, live streams and meeting materials.




AGENDA
RTA ORGANIZATIONAL, SERVICES & PERFORMANCE MONITORING COMMITTEE

Tuesday, May 21, 2024

Committee Members: Mayor Anthony D. Biasiotta, Chair
Ms. Lauren R. Welch, Vice Chair
Ms. Deidre Y. McPherson
Ms. Emily Garr Pacetti
Mr. Jeffrey W. Sleasman

R Roll Call

Il Quarterly Management Report - Review of 1% Quarter 2024 results.

Presenter:
« |India L. Birdsong Terry, General Manager, Chief Executive Officer

M. TRACTION Results Reporting - Presentation of 1% Quarter 2024
scorecards, customer experience surveys and community value surveys,

Presenter(s):
* India L. Birdsong Terry, General Manager, Chief Executive Officer
e Dr. James Rubin, Principal, Transpro

V. Adjourn



AGENDA
RTA COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE BOARD
Tuesday, May 21, 2024

Committee Members: Mayor Paul A. Koomar, Chair
Ms. Lauren R. Welch, Vice Chair
Mayor Anthany D. Biasiotta
Mr. Stephen M. Love
Rev. Charles P. Lucas
Ms. Deidre Y. McPherson
Ms. Calley Mersmann
Ms. Emily Garr Pacetti
Mr. Jeffrey W. Sleasman
Mayor David E. Weiss

Roll Call

Internal Audit Report - Presentation of 1% Quarter 2024 Internal Audit
Report.

Presenter:
« Anthony Garofoli, Internal Audit, Executive Director

Capital Improvement Plan — Revisions to proposed FY 2025-2029 CIP.

Presenters:
» Mike Schipper, Deputy General Manager, Engineering & Project
Management
¢ Carolyn Young, Manager of Budgets, OMB

Adjourn



Greater Cleveland Interoffice Memo
Regional Transit Authority

To: Mayor Paul A. Koomar, President
and Members, Board of Trustees

From: India L. Birdsong Terry,
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer @
Date: May 16, 2024

Subject: Revisions to Proposed Appropriations for FY 2025 and the Proposed FY 2025-
2029 Capital Improvement Plan

The Office of Management & Budget (OMB) and Engineering & Project Management will
present to the Board of Trustees proposed revisions to the Fiscal Year (FY) 2025-2029 Capital
Improvement Plan (CIP).

Since the May 7, 2024, Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee meeting and Public
Hearing we have reviewed the 2025 Capital Improvement Budget which is a part of the FY
2025-2029 CIP, and staff is proposing to incorporate revisions to project funding as follows:

+ Bus Improvement Program — NOACA has advanced ODOT CMAQ funding into SFY
2024 and confirmed the revised funding amounts for SFY 2025-29. ODOT has slightly
increased its UTP funding amount which is reflected in SFY 2025-29.

= Other Projects — Added the Lorain Road TOD project in 2025 which was recently
awarded a $0.7 million FTA TOD Pilot Project grant.

s Preventative Maintenance — Reduced 2029 amount from $12 million to $7 million.

» Railcar Replacement Program - NOACA has advanced STBG funding into SFY 2024 $9
million and we included SFY 2028 $3 million in 2029. Also added $5 million in 2029
previously in Preventative Maintenance.

The net result of these revisions increases the FY 2025 appropriations total from $165,890,767
to $181,740,767 and the five-year FY 2025-2029 CIP total from $591,059,316 to $600,107,134.

We are recommending the proposed FY 2025 Capital Budget with these revisions to the full
Board for discussion and approval at the May 21, 2024 Board Meeting.

IBT/KS/MJS/CY



10.

11.

12.

13:

14.

AGENDA

RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
Tuesday, May 21, 2024

9:00 a.m.

. Call to order

Roll Call
Certification regarding notice of meeting
Approval of the April 16, 2024 Board Meeting minutes

Public comments (2 minutes) on agenda items:
a. In person
b. Phone: 440-276-4600
c. Web form (1 comment limit) Comments will be forwarded to Board and

staff
Board Governance Committee report

Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee report
e  (Chair: Ms. Lauren R. Welch

Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee report
e  Chair: Mayor Anthony D. Biasiotta

Audit, Safety Compliance and Real Estate Committee report
¢ Chair: Mayor Paul A. Koomar

External and Stakeholder Relations and Advocacy Committee report
e  Chair: Rev. Charles P. Lucas

Civilian Oversight Committee (COC)
® Board Liaison: Ms. Lauren R. Welch

Community Advisory Committee (CAC)
« Board Liaison: Ms. Deidre McPherson

Ad Hoc Committee reports:
¢ Ad Hoc Compensation Committee — Mayor David E. Weiss
= Ad Hoc Paratransit Committee — Rev. Charles P. Lucas, Chair
=  Ad Hoc Technology Committee — Mr. Jeffrey W. Sleasman, Chair

Introduction of new employees and announcement of promotions



RTA Board of Trustees

May 21, 2024

Page 2

15.

Introduction of resolutions:

A.

2024-35 - Authorizing Contract No. 2023-167 with Castle Heating & Air,
Inc. for Woodhill Garage HVU Replacement, as specified, in an amount
not to exceed $129,900.00 (RTA Capital Fund, Engineering & Project
Development Department budget)

2024-36 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-20 with Jadco Construction
Services, Inc. for Main Office Building Parking Garage Repairs, as
specified, in an amount not to exceed $423,000.00 (RTA Development
Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department budget)

2024-37 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-048 with UKG Kronos Systems,
LLC to provide Annual Maintenance, Software Subscription and Support
Services for a period of one year in an amount not to exceed $148,518.05
(General Fund, Management Information Services Department budget)

2024-38 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-77 with Johnson Controls Fire
Protection LP to provide Fire and Safety Inspection and Testing through
the State of Ohio, Department of Administrative Services, Cooperative
Purchasing Program, in an amount not exceed $687,117.36 for a three-
year period, and in amounts not to exceed $229,039.12 and $249,039.12
for each of two option years, respectively, for a total five-year contract
amount not to exceed $1,165,195.60. (General Fund, Transit Police
Department budget)

2024-39 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-080 with Masabi LLC to provide
EZFare Mobile Ticketing Services in a total contract amount not to
exceed $1,200,000.00 for a period of two years (General Fund,
Management Information Services Department budget)

2024-40 - Repealing Chapters 1066 Promotional Activities and 1094
Newspaper Dispensing Box Policy and amending Chapters 470 Real
Estate Policies and 850 Public Assembly on Authority property of the
Codified Rules and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority

2024-41 = Appropriating the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority’s expenditures or outlays for the Fiscal Year (“FY") 2025 Capital
Improvement Budget

16. Secretary-Treasurer's Report:

General Fund Revenue — April 30, 2024 compared to April 30, 2023
General Fund Revenue — period ending April 30, 2024 compared to
budget

Sales & Use Tax Receipts Report budgeted during 2024, actual receipts
through May 2024

Inventory of Treasury Investments as of April 30, 2024.



RTA Board of Trustees

May 21
Page 3

17.
18.
19.
20.

21.

22.

23

, 2024
e. Debt Service Schedule and Status of Bond Retirement Fund (cash basis)
as of April 30, 2024.
f.  Summary of Investment Performance, Year to Date through April 30,
2024,
g. Report on Investment Earnings (cash basis) as of April 30, 2024.
h. Composition of Investment Portfolio as of April 30, 2024,
I.  Banking and Financial Relationships as of April 30, 2024.
General Manager’'s Report

President’s Report
Old Business
New Business

Public comments (2 minutes) on public transit related items:
a. In person
b. Phone: 440-276-4600
c. Web form (1 comment limit) Comments will be forwarded to Board and

staff

The next regular Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, June 25, 2024 in the
Board Room of the Authority, Root-McBride Building, 1240 West Sixth Street,
Cleveland, Ohio 44113. This meeting will be live-streamed on RTA's Board page
(www.RideRTA .com/board) by clicking the meeting date. The public is welcome
to attend in person.

Adjournment



Minutes
RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
9:03 a.m. April 16, 2024

Board Members: Kocomar (Chair), Welch (Vice Chair), Biasiotta, Lucas, McPherson, Mersmann, Pacetti,
Sleasman, Weiss

Not present: Love

Staff: Birdsong Terry (virtual), Brooks-Williams, Burney, Caver, Dangelo, Davidson, Feke, Fields, Fleig,
Ford, Freilich, Garofoli, Gautam, Gibson, Hudson, Jones, Jupina, Kirkland, Lincoln, McMahon, Miller,
Mothes, Reed, Schipper, Talley, Tarka, Togher, Walker-Minor

Public: DCI Consultants (virtual), Kendricks, Loh, Mates, Nix, Pinkney-Butts, Rodriquez, Seals, Turner,
Walker, Yontz

The meeting was called to order at 9:03 a.m. There were nine (9) Board members present.

It was advised that notice of this meeting had been posted more than twenty-four hours in advance of the
meeting, that the usual notification had been given the news media and other interested persons, and that
all requirements of the Ohio Revised Code and Rules and Bylaws of this Board regarding notice of
meeting had been complied with.

Minutes
President Koomar stated that the minutes from the March 19, 2024 Board Meeting and Annual Meeting

had been previously distributed and reviewed, and asked whether there were any additions and/or
corrections. There were no corrections. It was moved and seconded. The minutes were approved.

Public Comments — Agenda ltems

1. Rev. Pinkney-Butts — Rev. Pinkney congratulated the retirees. She supports the agenda
particularly ltem A and Item G. She asked about ltem B and ltem D. She asked when the Port
would open back up. She asks that children not be allowed on the seats. For ltem H, she asked if
Shaker Square could have a Park and Ride service like 2 Birds Shuttle & Detail.

2. Larry Rodriguez — Larry complained about the smell on the trains. An operator refused to turn on
the AC until 30 minutes after he complained.

3. Isaac Shimsky-Agosto (webform) - GCRTA still has not fully implemented EZFare. Passengers
wishing to board or exit Tower City must show their pass to an RTA employee, and have the
employee unlock the faregate for them. | personally had to wait for an employee to let me out
when there was not one at the gates. It is long past time for RTA to connect EZFare scanners
to the Tower City faregates.

Dr. Caver said the staff is in the process of getting the equipment to activate the gates with
EZFare. The plan was to have it last year, but the company could not produce the units due to
COVID related backlog and inventory issues.

4. Airric Stewart — Agendas items are not being posted in enough time so that callers can have
informed questions. And questions are not addressed during the public comment section. He
hasn't received comments from the CAC about the 48A and 15A. RTA has a responsibility to the

public.



RTA Board of Trustees

April 16, 2024
Page 2 of 5

The agenda was posted Friday, April 5. The link was sent to Airric Stewart during his call. He was
also added to the mailing list to receive notification when the agenda is live on the website.

5. Chris Martin — Public comments are shared by the same people. Meetings should be held at a time
when the public can attend, like in the evenings.

6. Bryan Haggar — There is smoking and drinking on the train. And the frains are not clean, There
needs to be more police on the service. Bus routes #9, #40 and HealthLine needs improved on-
time performance.

Committee Reports

There were no committee reports.

Introduction of New Employees/Promotions

There were 17 new hires and 9 promotions. Their names are listed on the PowerPoint presentation.

Introduction of Resolutions

A.

2024-24 - Expressing congratulations to the employees of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority who retired during the first quarter of 2024, the adoption of
which was moved by Ms. Welch, seconded by Ms. Mersmann and approved by
unanimous vote,

Several retirees were in attendance and expressed their appreciation for employment
with RTA.

2024-25 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-002 with Kennedy Railroad Services, LLC for
Project No. 66B — Port of Cleveland Connector Track in an amount not to exceed
$883,443.00 (RTA Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development
Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by Ms. Welch, seconded by
Mayor Weiss. A roll call was requested. There were eight (8) ayes and one (1)
abstention from Ms. Mersmann. It passed.

2024-26 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-5 with Freedman Seating Company for the
purchase of Railcar Vinyl Seat Upholstery, as specified, in an amount not to exceed
$298,490.72 (RTA Development Fund, Fleet Management Department budget), the
adoption of which was moved by Ms. Pacetti, seconded by Ms. Mersmann and
approved by unanimous vote.

2024-27 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-6 with Premier Window Cleaning LLC for
Rapid Station Washing and Cleaning Services for a period of three (3) years in an
amount not to exceed $483,120.00 (General Fund, Rail Facilities Maintenance
Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by Mayor Biasiotta, seconded
by Ms. Mersmann and approved by unanimous vote.

2024-28 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-023 with Northeast Lubricants LTD. for the
furnishing of transmission fluid, as specified and as required, for a period of one (1)
year in an amount not to exceed $103,000.00 (General Fund, Fleet Management
Department Budget), the adoption of which was moved by Ms. Welch, seconded by
Ms. Pacetti and approved by unanimously vote.



RTA Board of Trustees

April 16, 2024
Page 3 of 5

2024-29 - Approving the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's 2024-2027
Quadrennial Equal Employment Opportunity Program and Affirmative Action Goals, the
adoption of which was moved by Ms. Welch, seconded by Ms. Mersmann and
approved by unanimous vote.

2024-30 - Amending Chapter 464 Protection Against Internal Losses of Public Assets
and Section 460.06 Insurance Fund of the Codified Rules and Regulations of the
Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, the adoption of which was moved by
Ms. Mersmann, seconded by Mr. Sleasman and approved by unanimous vote.

Judy Lincoln, Director of Risk Management and Dawn Tarka, Associate Counsel ||
provided responses to Code Book questions that were raised at the April 2 Committee
of Whole meeting. The amended changes recommended by the committee were
outlined in the redline attachments and in a memo addressed to the Board.

2024-31 - Authorizing a renewal lease agreement with 2 Birds Shuttle and Detail, LLC
for property at the Puritas-West 150" Street Rapid Transit Station, located at 4200
West 150" Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44135, for a term of ten years at $12,000.00 per
year for the first year and incremental annual increases to $15,240.00 for the tenth
year, the adoption of which was moved by Ms. Welch, seconded by Ms. Pacetti. A roll
call was requested. There were eight (8) ayes and one (1) abstention from Ms.
Mersmann. It passed

2024-32 - License agreement for access and laydown areas to support the West 117"
Bridge Rehabilitation Project (RTA Development Fund, Engineering & Project
Development Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by Mayor Weiss,
seconded by Ms. Welch. A roll call was requested. There were eight (8) ayes and one
(1) abstention from Ms. Mersmann. It passed.

2024-33 - Authorizing a lease between the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority and Century Federal Credit Union for office space located at the Hayden
District Garage, 1661 Hayden Avenue, East Cleveland, Ohio 44112, the adoption of
which was moved by Ms. Mersmann, seconded by Ms. Pacetti and approved by
unanimous vote.

2024-34 - Authorizing a salary adjustment for Anthony A. Garofoli, Executive Director
of Internal Audit, the adoption of which was moved by Ms. Mersmann, seconded by
Ms. McPherson and approved by unanimous vote.

Mayor Weiss, chair of the Compensation Committee added that India Birdsong Terry,
CEOQO/GM and Anthony Garofoli, Executive Director of Internal Audit report directly to the
Board. The Compensation Committee conducts the review process and compensation
recommendations. The committee recommends a 4.3% merit increase to the base pay for
Mr. Garofoli. This is consistent with the merit pool that has been budgeted for non-
bargaining employees for 2024. For GM/CEQ Terry, they performed an evaluation, but
there is no recommended change in her compensation. They entered into a new
employment agreement with her in 2023. As part of that new contract, there was no
adjustment to be made.

Secretary-Treasurer's Report

Rajan D. Gautam, Deputy General Manager of Finance and Secretary-Treasurer gave the report. Inflation
hit a high of 9.1% in June 2022. It had been declining steadily since then. In March, however it increased



RTA Board of Trustaés
April 16, 2024
Page 4 of 5

to 3.5% from the previous month's of 3.4%. The Federal Reserve has maintained interest rates since
September 2023 at 5.5%. They are scheduled to meet at the end of April and early May to determine if
any further action on the interest rates needs to be taken.

March 2024 ridership was 10.3% above 2023 levels. Compared to pre-COVID numbers, 2019 ridership
was 7.7 million rides. YTD there was 5.8 million rides or 1.9 million rides lower compared to pre COVID
numbers or a 24 6% decrease. Passenger fares are relatively flat compared to February 2024, However,
they were 16% above budget. Compared to pre-COVID, passenger fares was $9.4 million in 2019. YTD
for 2024 through the end of March it was $7.9 million, showing a decrease of $1.5 million or 15.9%.

April sales tax is not in yet. It will be forwarded when it is available. For March 2024, it was 0.7% higher
than March 2023 levels. YTD is flat 0.1% lower compared to 2023. YTD comparing 2024 to 2023, 12 of
the 24 categories that make up the sales tax base were positive. Online sales were 13.5% higher.
Regular and statewide sales were 0.8% lower. Motor vehicles and watercraft were 5.1% lower,

General Manager/CEQ Report

Dr. Floun'say Caver, Chief Operating Officer and Deputy General Manager for Operations, gave the report.
RTA received a $700K FTA grant to study a redevelopment corridor along Lorain Road from W. 25! to the
Lorain County Line in the Cities of Cleveland, Fairview Park, and North Olmsted, GM/CEOQ Terry attended
the Cleveland Leadership Center's Cleveland Bridge Builders Class of 2024 event, March 21. The topic
was Power and Influence. GCRTA employees received a snack bag for Transit Employee Appreciation
Day, March 22. Originated by APTA, this annual celebration recognizes contributions of transit workers
and raises awareness of the importance of investing in public transportation infrastructure. He thanked his
Operations Division.

On March 25, GM/CEOQ Terry joined Mayor Justin Bibb, County Executive Chris Ronayne and the Group
Plan Commission for a press conference announcing the removal of the jersey barriers from Public Square
in preparation upgrades that will be made to the Square. GM/CEQ Terry served on a Women's
Leadership panel for the Soul of Philanthropy Event held April 2. Topics included leadership, professional
development, work-life balance and educational opportunities for emerging African American female
leadership in Greater Cleveland, Internal Audit and Information Technology hosted a Cybersecurity
Tabletop Drill, April 2. Topics included organizational awareness and cyber preparedness. A Bus
Operator Career Fair was held on April 5 at Tri-C Metro Campus Center. Several hundred offers were

made to candidates.

Several RTA employees volunteered to assist RTA customers during the Solar Eclipse and Guardians
Hope Opener, April 8. Staff were stationed at several stations, assisting customers with safe travel and
fare payment. RTA also provided solar glasses to all employees for safety. GM/CEQO Terry served on a
panel for the 2024 CUBE Symposium: Building Cleveland Together where they discussed opportunities for

MBE'’s and WBEs.

Ms. Mersmann shared that RTA was very helpful to the community during the Solar Eclipse. Rev. Lucas
thanked the staff for making that day so special. Mayor Koomar said it was great to have a plan in place
for that day.

President's Report

Mayor Koomar worked with GM/CEO Terry on the new committee assignments. He asks for Board
members fo reach out to him for questions. He will also follow up with the Board on the travel schedule.
Training will be required for Board members who are traveling for the first time.



RTA Board of Trustees
April 16, 2024
Page 5 of 5

New Business

Mayor Koomar asked for a Response to Service Proposals presentation which was presented back on
April 12, 2022 to the External & Stakeholder Relations & Advocacy Committee be presented again today.
The presentation is for new Board members and to address NextGen concerns that the public has

mentioned during Board meetings.

The presentation summarized the route recommendations from the NextGen changes related to the
#48/#48AM##50 and #15A. It also summarized recommendations made by community advocate Airric
Stewart. The two recommendations were compared, [t was determined that no additional changes will be
made to the original NextGen service plan. Recommendations came from a thorough analysis from the
Service Management team which looked at ridership, efficiency, and the responses from the riders during
NextGen community meetings and follow up meetings after the plan was implemented.

Public Comments — public transit related items

1. Rev. Pamela Pinkney Butts — Rev. Pinkney invited Cleveland Division of Police to the meeting to
assist with any questions and concerns the Board may have. Rev. Pinkney supports RTA having
an Affirmative Action Plan. The meeting agenda should be provided in braille. Homelessness and
mass incarceration is a problem. She thanked HR for their hiring efforts. She gathers information
from people who need assistance. RTA used to provide passes for these individuals. East
Cleveland and Warrensville Heights needs more shuttle service.

2. Loh —RTA real time display information is not accurate.

3. Airric Stewart — Airric believes his NextGen recommendations are being misrepresented. He went
over his recommendations again. The public requested weekend service on the 48A. No request
was made to the 50. The ridership on the 48A was not provided. Pinecrest did not exist 20 years
ago so there are additional riders to consider.

Upcoming Meetings

The next regular Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, May 21, 2024 in the Board Room of the
Authority, Root-McBride Building, 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44113. This meeting will be live

streamed on RTA’s Board page (www.RideRTA.com/board) by selecting the meeting date. The public is
welcome to attend in person.

The meeting was adjourned at 1023 a.m.

President

Attest;

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- @ Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: WOODHILL GARAGE HVU REPLACEMENT 2024-35
Date:
VENDOR: CASTLE HEATING & AIR, INC. May 16, 2024
Initiator: Engineering &
AMOUNT: $129,900.00 Project Development
Department

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval [ Review/Comment 0O Information Only [1 Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority (“Authority”) to enter into a contract to remove and replace two existing heating
and ventilating units at Woodhill Garage.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The HVU replacement project will take place at the
Authority's Woodhill Garage located at 2500 Woodhill Rd., Cleveland, OH 44104, The project
involves replacing the antiquated and non-functional heating and ventilation units. Due to the
age of both units, replacement parts are not available.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Invitation for Bids (“IFB") was posted on the
Authority’s Procurement website and advertised in the local newspapers. Twenty-nine (29)
interested parties, including potential subcontractors, downloaded the solicitation package.
One (1) bid was received and opened on November 21, 2023. The bid is as follows:

Company Name Total Base Bid
Castle Heating & Air, Inc. $129,900.00

The basis of award is the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder for the Total Base
Bid. Castle Heating & Air, Inc. was determined to be a responsible bidder. The total base bid
price of $129,900.00 from Castle Heating & Air, Inc. is 1.3% above the project estimate of
$128,285.04.

A price analysis has been performed, and the bid of Castle Heating & Air, Inc. has been
determined by the Procurement department to be fair and reasonable to the Authority.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION / DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have been
met. An 18% DBE goal was established for this procurement. Castle Heating & Air, Inc. has
committed to achieving the DBE participation goal through the utilization of Irizar Electric LLC
(Hispanic male-owned) in the amount of $32,500.00 or 25%.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement shall be payable through the RTA Capital
Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited
to 100% local funds, for a total contract amount not to exceed $129,900.00.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this bid. Rejection of this bid will impact the Authority's ability to safely
heat and ventilate the garage.




2024-35

Staff Summary & Comments
Woodhill Garage HVU Replacement

Page 2

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the bid from Castle Heating & Air, Inc. be
accepted and the resolution adopted authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer

to enter into a contract.

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with

the Procurement requirements.

A@%ﬁgfz

Géferal Manager, Chief Exe Officer



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-35

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2023-167 WITH CASTLE HEATING & AIR, INC.
FOR WOODHILL GARAGE HVU REPLACEMENT, AS SPECIFIED, IN AN
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $129,900.00 (RTA CAPITAL FUND, ENGINEERING
& PROJECT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority ("Authority”) deems it
necessary to remove and replace two existing heating and ventilation units at Woodhill Garage
located at 2500 Woodhill Rd., Cleveland, OH 44104; and

WHEREAS, the bid of Castle Heating & Air, Inc., located at 4944 Commerce Parkway,
Warrensville Hts., OH 44128, was received on November 21, 2023 in an amount not to exceed
$129,900.00; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of Castle
Heating & Air, Inc. to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder and recommends
acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid of Castle Heating & Air, Inc. for the Woodhill Garage HVU
Replacement be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Castle Heating & Air, Inc. for the removal
and replacement of two existing heating and ventilation units at the Woodhill Garage.

Section 3. This procurement shall be payable through the RTA Capital Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited to 100% local
funds, for a total contract amount not to exceed $129,900.00.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the specifications and addenda, if any; the
Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance requirements
and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That the Authority's Board of Trustees expects that Castle Heating & Air, Inc.
will attempt to exceed the 18% minimum DBE goal assigned to this procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: May 21, 2024

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Greater Cleveland Interoffice Memo
Regional Transit Authority

To: Mayor Paul A. Koomar, President
and Members, Board of Trustees

From: India L. Birdsong Terry
General Manager, Chief Executive Dﬁicer'@
Date: May 16, 2024

Subject: Informational Memo

At the May 7, 2024 meeting of the Board of Trustees, questions were asked regarding (1)
GCRTA's lost and found process, (2) ownership and maintenance of the parking garage
adjacent to the GCRTA Main Office Building, and (3) sale of food and beverages on GCRTA
property. This informational memo is to provide additional information to address the Board's
questions. :

GCRTA'’s Lost & Found Process:
Pursuant to discussion regarding the Code Book provision authorizing GCRTA to remove

articles left on GCRTA’s property, the Board inquired about GCRTA's lost and found process.

GCRTA's Customer Service Center maintains a Log of items that are found and returned to the
operating district. Persons who have lost items can call the GCRTA Customer Service Center at
216-621-9500. Bicycles are retained at the operating district for at least 30 days and then sent
to RTA's Woodhill District for storage. GCRTA has the discretion to dispose of items, through
disposal, sale, or donation, that have become GCRTA's property after a 30-day period.

Regarding laptops and cell phones, Support Services picks up laptops and cellphones from the
Customer Service Center after 30 days and transports them to the IT Department. Cellphones
and tablets are donated and refurbished to a local battered women shelter.

Ownership and Maintenance of the Worthington Parking Garage (referred to as the “Main
Office Building Parking Garage”):

Pursuant to discussion about a proposed contract for repairs to the ramp leading to the
basement level of the parking garage adjacent to the Main Office Building, the Board inquired
about ownership and maintenance throughout the parking garage.

GCRTA owns the basement level and the ramp in the parking garage. GCRTA has an access
easement over the 1% floor for access to the ramp and to Johnson Court.

701 Lakeside LLC owns the 1* and 2™ floors of the parking garage. Gus Georgealis is the
“member” (a.k.a owner) of 701 Lakeside LLC. Most of the 1% and 2" floors of the parking
garage are leased to Cloak Factory. Pinnacle Condominium Unit Owners' Association owns the
structure above the 2™ floor (which was originally built by Gus Georgealis). GCRTA has no
contractual relationship with Pinnacle.



Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority

Based on a Reciprocal Operating & Easement Agreement dated July 21, 1995, GCRTA pays
28% of common area maintenance expenses incurred by Gus Georgealis for maintenance and
operation of the portions of the parking garage that directly affect GCRTA's ownership of the
ramp and basement level.

As noted by the Board during the discussion, structural work has been taking place on the 1%
and 2" floors of the parking garage since last summer. That is being done by 701 Lakeside
LLC as a result of building code violations issued by the City of Cleveland in 2023. Per notice
from Gus Georgealis received this month, those building code violations have been cleared.
GCRTA’s Legal and Engineering Departments continue to monitor the structural integrity and
maintenance of the parking garage.

The resolution package this month is for repair of the drains on the first floor of the garage
(owned by 701 Lakeside LLC) and concrete repairs to the ramp and basement ceiling (owned

by GCRTA).
Sale of Food on Authority Property:

Current GCRTA policy prohibits the sale of food and beverages on GCRTA's property. The
Board inquired whether the policy should be revised to permit the General Manager, Chief

Executive Officer discretion to approve food and beverage sale.

Chapter 3717 of the Ohio Revised Code governs sale of food and directs local authorities,
including all county boards of health, to ensure that food sales meet strict state standards and
licensing requirements. In order for GCRTA to allow a special event permittee to sell food on
GCRTA property, GCRTA would have to obtain a license from the Cuyahoga County Board of
Health. The food seller would also have to obtain a separate license. Additionally, GCRTA
would have to obtain local municipal permits in certain municipalities and for certain types of
food sales, depending on each city's specific laws.

Following discussion during the Committee of the Whaole, GCRTA is proposing amendments to
Chapter 470 of the Code Book to give GCRTA's General Manager, Chief Executive Officer
permissive authority to allow food and beverage sales, provided that all requisite licenses have
been obtained (by both GCRTA and the food seller) and reviewed by the Legal Department.

Please call me if you have any questions or require additional information prior to Tuesday's
meeting.

IBT/ah



Form 100- @ Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: MAIN OFFICE BUILDING PARKING GARAGE REPAIRS 2024-36
Date:
VENDOR: JADCO CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, INC. May 16, 2024
Initiator: Engineering &
AMOUNT: $423,000.00 Project Development
Department

ACTION REQUEST:

X Approval [0 Review/Comment O Information Only O Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority ("Authority”) to enter into a contract to repair the ramp leading from the first floor
to the basement level of the parking garage behind the Main Office Building and the ceiling
of the basement level of the garage, as well as the drains on the first floor of the garage.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The project is at the parking garage located at 701 W.
Lakeside Ave., Cleveland, OH. The Authority owns and exclusively utilizes the basement level
of the garage and the ramp from the first floor down to the basement floor. Water penetration
from the first floor has caused concrete to deteriorate and fall onto cars parked in the
basement level owned by the Authority. The work involves repairing drains located on the first
floor which is owned by 701 Lakeside LLC as well as repairs to failed concrete on the
basement ceiling and the ramp leading from the first floor to the basement level which are
owned by the Authority. To accommodate parking of vehicles in the basement level and
movement of cars on the first floor, it will be necessary to complete this work in phases and on
weekends. )

$24,050.00 of the total price is for drain repairs on the first floor of the garage owned by 701
Lakeside LLC.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Invitation for Bid ("IFB") was posted on the Authority's
Procurement website and advertised in the local newspapers. Twenty-nine (29) interested
parties, including potential subcontractors, downloaded the solicitation package. One (1) bid
was received and opened on March 27, 2024, as follows:

Company Name Total Base Bid
JADCO Construction Services, Inc. $423,000.00

The Basis of Award is the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder for the Total Base

Bid price. JADCO Construction Services, Inc. was determined to be a responsible bidder. The
Total Base Bid price of $423,000.00 from JADCO Construction Services, Inc. is 0.84% below
the project estimate of $426,600.00.

A price analysis has been performed, and the bid of JADCO Construction Services, Inc. has
been determined by the Procurement Department to be fair and reasonable to the Authority.




Staff Summary & Comments )
Main Office Building Garage Repairs 2024-36
Page 2

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/ DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have been
met. A 11% DBE goal was established for this procurement. JADCO Construction Services,
Inc. has committed to achieving the DBE participation goal through the utilization of Artistic
Rock (Caucasian female-owned) in the amount of $10,000,00, Bush Striping (African American
male-owned) in the amount of $8,650.00, and All Contractors Supply (Caucasian female-
owned) in the amount of $27,973.00 ($46,623.00 x 60%) for DBE participation of $46,623.00 or

11%.
POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement shall be payable through the RTA
Development Fund, including but not limited to, 100% local funds, for a total contract

amount not to exceed $423,000.00.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this bid. Rejection of this bid will impact the Authority’s ability to safely
park in the garage.

RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the May
7, 2024 Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee meeting. It is recommended that the
bid from JADCO Construction Services, Inc. be accepted and the resolution adopted
authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a contract.

ATTACHMENTS: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

._—--



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-36

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2024-20 WITH JADCO CONSTRUCTION
SERVICES, INC. FOR MAIN OFFICE BUILDING PARKING GARAGE REPAIRS,
AS SPECIFIED, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $423,000.00 (RTA
DEVELOPMENT FUND, ENGINEERING & PROJECT DEVELOPMENT

DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) deems it
necessary to make repairs in the parking garage located at 701 W. Lakeside Ave., Cleveland,
OH: and

WHEREAS, the Authority owns the basement level of the parking garage and the ramp
from the first floor to the basement level, and it has an access easement over the first floor in
order to access the ramp and basement level; and

WHEREAS, 701 Lakeside LLC owns the first and second floors of the parking garage;
and

WHEREAS, clogged and broken drains on the first floor of the parking garage are
deteriorating concrete between the first floor and the basement floor, causing concrete to fall
from the ceiling of the basement level of the garage; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has determined that repairs to the drains on the first floor will
alleviate further deterioration of the concrete between the first floor and the basement level of

the garage; and

WHEREAS, the bid of JADCO Construction Services, Inc., located at 9901 York-Theta
Drive, North Royalton, OH 44133, for those repairs was received on March 27, 2024 in an
amount not to exceed $423,000.00; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of JADCO
Construction Services, Inc. to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder and
recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid of JADCO Construction Services, Inc. for the Main Office
Building Parking Garage Repairs, be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with JADCO Construction Services, Inc. for the
repair of drains located on the first floor of the garage owned by 701 Lakeside LLC, as well as
repairs to failed concrete on the basement ceiling and ramp leading from the first floor to the
basement level of the parking garage.

Section 3. That $24,050.00 of the total cost of the project will be for repair of drains on
the first floor owned by 701 Lakeside LLC.



Resolution No. 2024-36
Page 2

Section 4. This procurement shall be payable through the RTA Development Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited to, 100% local
funds, for a total contract amount not to exceed $423,000.00,

Section 5. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the specifications and addenda, if any; the
Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance requirements
and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 6. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority’s Board of Trustees
expects that JADCO Constructions Services, Inc. will attempt to exceed the 11% minimum DBE
goal assigned to this procurement.

Section 7. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: May 21, 2024

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: KRONOS ANNUAL SOFTWARE SUBSCRIPTION AND 2024-37
SUPPORT SERVICES Date:
May 16, 2024

VENDOR: UKG KRONOS SYSTEMS, LLC

Initiator: Management

AMOUNT:  NTE $148.518.05 FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR Information Services

Department

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval O Review/Comment 0O Information Only O Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority (“Authority”) to enter into the annual agreement for maintenance, software
subscription and support services with UKG Kronos Systems, LLC (“Kronos”) applications and
equipment for a period of one year.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority has been utilizing Kronos software technology
and applications since 1998, Annual maintenance, licensing and support are required to
maintain the Kronos applications and equipment (time clocks). Kronos is a companion product
for payroll processing. Kronos technology and applications are proprietary products designed
exclusively by Kronos.

PROCUREMENT BACKGRQOUND: This contract for maintenance, software subscription and
support services is exempt from competition under R.C. 306.43(H)(3). Kronos applications are
proprietary, and Kronos is the only source authorized to provide maintenance, software
subscription and support services for the Kronos system. Kronos has offered to provide said
services for the Kronos software products for a negotiated amount not to exceed $148,518.05
for a one-year period. This total is approximately 1% below the project estimate of
$150,000.00.

A price analysis has been performed, and the Procurement Department has determined that
the price is fair and reasonable to the Authority.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION / DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have
been met. A 0% DBE participation goal was established for this procurement because it is for
the maintenance of proprietary software, for which work is limited to and exclusive to the
original provider and installer by agreement.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: The contract will be funded through the General Fund, Management
Information Services Department budget in an amount not to exceed $148,518.05 for a period
of one year.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would leave the Kronos software
applications unlicensed and unsupported, which would jeopardize the functionality of critical
HR and payroll systems.

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the offer from Kronos be accepted and the
resolution adopted authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a
contract.



Staff Summary & Comments
Kronos Annual Subscription & Support
Page 2

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: None.

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form, and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

f

&
7éneral Manager, Chief Eﬁw{bfﬁcer

2024-37



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-37

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2024-048 WITH UKG KRONOS SYSTEMS,
LLC TO PROVIDE ANNUAL MAINTENANCE, SOFTWARE SUBSCRIPTION
AND SUPPORT SERVICES FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR IN AN AMOUNT
NOT TO EXCEED $148,518.05 (GENERAL FUND, MANAGEMENT
INFORMATION SERVICES DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority ("Authority”) currently
utilizes UKG Kronos Systems, LLC ("Kronos”) licensed products for human resources
management and payroll processing; and

WHEREAS, Kronos applications are proprietary, and annual maintenance, software
subscription and support services are required to use and maintain this software application;
and

WHEREAS, these maintenance, software subscription and support services are only
available from Kronos, located at 900 Chelmsford Street, Lowell, MA 01851, the original
licensor of these products; and

WHEREAS, R.C. 306.43(H)(3) does not require competitive proceduras when the
expenditure is for a renewal or renegotiation of a lease or license for telecommunications or
electronic data processing equipment, services or systems, or for the upgrade of such
equipment, services or systems, or for the maintenance thereof as supplied by the original
source or its successors or assigns; and

WHEREAS, Kronos has offered to provide said maintenance, software subscription and
support services at a negotiated amount not to exceed $148,518.05 for a period of one year;
and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the offer from Kronos
to provide said services, to be in the best interest of the Authority and recommends acceptance
thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the offer from Kronaos, to provide maintenance, software subscription
and support services for a period of one year be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. The General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and she is
hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Kronos to provide said services.

Section 3. The contract will be funded through the General Fund, Management
Information Services Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $148,518.05 for a period

of one year.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor with the specifications and addenda, if any; the
Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance requirements
and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the Authority.



Resolution No. 2024-37
Page 2

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that Kronos will attempt to exceed the 0% minimum DBE goal assigned to this
procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: May 21, 2024

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- @ Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: FIRE ALARM INSPECTION AND MAINTENANCE 2024-38
Date:
VENDOR: JOHNSON CONTROLS FIRE PROTECTION LP May 16, 2024

Initiator: Transit Police

AMOUNT:  NTE $687,117.36 FOR A PERIOD OF THREE YEARS, Department

AND IN AMOUNTS NTE $229,039.12 AND $249,039.12
FOR EACH OF TWO OPTION YEARS, RESPECTIVELY,
FOR A TOTAL FIVE-YEAR CONTRACT AMOUNT NTE
$1,165,195.60.

ACTION REQUEST:
X Approval [0 Review/Comment O Information Only 0O Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

PURPQSE/SCOPE: This resolution will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority (“Authority”) to enter into a contract for fire safety inspection and testing, in
accordance with state and local regulations, for a period of three years, with two, one-year
options for renewal.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority requires independent third-party inspection

and testing of its fire and safety system. This Authority-wide system is comprised of electrical
and mechanical components that require annual inspection, testing, and certification, as well
as ongoing service and maintenance. This action is necessary to meet the state and city fire

codes which require a complete annual safety system inspection, including semi-annual and

quarterly inspections and testing.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: R.C. Section 306.43(H)(4) provides political subdivisions
within the State of Ohio the opportunity to participate in contracts negotiated and executed by
the State of Ohio, Department of Administrative Services, Cooperative Purchasing Program,
for the purchase of supplies, services, equipment, and materials. The Board of Trustees has
authorized the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer, to utilize such contracts by
Resolution No. 1990-069.

The State of Ohio Cooperative Purchasing Program includes a contract with Johnson
Controls Fire Protection LP under State Term Contract No. MMA7634. Said contract will allow
the Authority to obtain the needed services for an amount not to exceed $687,117.36 fora
period of three years, and in amounts not to exceed $229,039.12 and $249,039.12 for each of
two option years, respectively, for a total five-year contract amount not to exceed
$1,165,195.60.The price established under this state program is a result of a competitive
solicitation process and is offered to qualifying government entities. This price is the budgeted
amount for this procurement.

A cost analysis has been performed, and the Procurement Department has determined that
the pricing provided by Johnson Controls Fire Protection LP is fair and reasonable for the
Authority.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION / DBE BACKGROUND: The Office of Business Development does
not conduct Affirmative Action reviews or establish goals on procurements included in the
State Cooperative Purchasing program.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.




Staff Summary & Comments 2024-38
Fire Alarm Inspection and Maintenance
Page 2

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement shall be payable through the General Fund,
Transit Police Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $687,117.36 for a
period of three years, and in amounts not to exceed $229,039.12 and $249,039.12 for
each of two option years, respectively, for a total five-year contract amount not to
exceed $1,165,195.60.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this proposal will leave the Authority without
the ability to obtain required inspection, testing, certification, and maintenance for the fire and
safety system. Failure to obtain these services may subject the Authority to citations for
violation of the Ohio Fire Code and/or City of Cleveland fire and safety ordinances.

RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the May
7, 2024 Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee meeting. It is
recommended that the offer of Johnson Controls Fire Protection LP be accepted and the
resolution adopted authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a
contract,

ATTACHMENTS: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

4% T

Ge?ﬁeral Manager, Chief Executive ?ﬁéer




RESOLUTION NO. 2024-38

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2024-77 WITH JOHNSON CONTROLS FIRE
PROTECTION LP TO PROVIDE FIRE AND SAFETY INSPECTION AND
TESTING THROUGH THE STATE OF OHIO, DEPARTMENT OF
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES, COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM, IN
AN AMOUNT NOT EXCEED $687,117.36 FOR A THREE-YEAR PERIOD, AND IN
AMOUNTS NOT TO EXCEED $229,039.12 AND $249,039.12 FOR EACH OF
TWO OPTION YEARS, RESPECTIVELY, FOR A TOTAL FIVE-YEAR CONTRACT
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $1,165,195.60. (GENERAL FUND, TRANSIT
POLICE DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) is required to
test and maintain the fire and safety system in accordance with the state and local regulations;
and

WHEREAS, such services are available from Johnson Controls Fire Protection LP,
located at 17295 Foltz Industrial Parkway, Suite G, Strongsville, Ohio 44149, to provide
equipment and services through the State of Ohio, Department of Administrative Services,
Cooperative Purchasing Program; and

WHEREAS, the State of Ohio Cooperative Purchasing Program provides political
subdivisions within the State of Ohio with the opportunity to participate in contracts executed by
the State of Ohio, Department of Administrative Services, Office of State Purchasing, for the
purchase of supplies, services, equipment and certain materials and recommends acceptance
thereof by the Board of Trustees; and

WHEREAS, R.C. Section 306.43(H)(4) permits a regional transit authority to participate
in said program; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees authorized utilization of the State of Ohio Cooperative
Purchasing Program in Resolution 1990-069; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer has deemed it to be in the
best interest of the Authority o utilize the State of Ohio Cooperative Purchasing Program for
obtaining fire and safety inspection and testing from Johnson Controls Fire Protection LP for a
period of three years, with two, one-year options for renewal, and recommends acceptance
thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the offer of Johnson Controls Fire Protection LP to provide fire and
safety inspection and testing for a period of three years, with two, one-year option renewals, be
and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Johnson Controls Fire Protection LP to
provide said services and with authority to exercise the two option years.



Resolution No. 2024-38
Page 2

Section 3. That the said contract is entered into under the authority granted by Ohio
Revised Code Section 306.43(H)(4) and under the terms of the State of Ohio Cooperative
Purchasing Program.

Section 4. That said contract will be funded through the General Fund, Transit Police
Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $687,117.36 for a period of three years, and in
amounts not to exceed $229,039.12 and $249,039.12 for each of two option years, respectively,
for a total five-year contract amount not to exceed $1,165,195.60.

Section 5. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon funding for future years, compliance by the contractor to the specifications and
addenda, if any, the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees, bonding and
insurance requirements and all applicable law relating to contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: May 21, 2024

President

Aftest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- @ Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: EZFARE MOBILE TICKETING SERVICES 2024-39
Date:
VENDOR:  MASABI LLC May 16, 2024
AMOUNT:  NTE $1,200,000.00 FOR A PERIOD OF TWO YEARS Initiator: Management
Information Systems
Department
ACTION REQUEST:
Approval [0 Review/Comment [ Information Only [ Other

1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
(“Authority”) to participate in an intergovernmental cooperative purchasing agreement to
continue utilizing the mobile ticketing solution, EZFare, made available through the NEORide
Regional Council of Governments.

2.0 DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority began utilizing a mobile ticketing solution in
2016. The previous provider to the Authority ceased its mobile ticketing business at the end of
2022. The Authority then began participating in an interagency agreement made available
through the NEORIide Regional Council of Governments (*“NEORide"), which provided a
comprehensive mobile fare collection solution to replace the Authority’s previously expiring
solution. NECRIde issued a competitive Request for Proposal ("RFP") in March 2018 for a
joint mobile ticketing solution to be used by its member transit agencies. The RFP was
ultimately awarded to Masabi LLC. The Masabi LLC solution provides backend, cloud-based
software, a cloud-based customer portal, and a mobile application that provides both visual
and electronic validation on Authority vehicles and locations throughout its service footprint.
NEORIde has since renewed its cooperative purchasing agreement with Masabi LLC for its
member agencies.

The use of EZFare has resulted in a positive experience for Authonty customers since its
implementation, and the Authority now deems it favorable to renew the services provided by
Masabi LLC through the intergovernmental cooperative purchasing agreement established by
NEORIde.

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: R.C. Section 306.43(J) authorizes the Authority to enter
into intergovernmental cooperative purchasing agreements, including those entered info by a
council of governments such as NEORide. The Authority's Board of Trustees authorized
membership in NEORide on September 24, 2019 by Resolution No. 2019-099. Pursuant to the
Authority's membership in NEORIde, the Authority has negotiated the proposed EZFare mobile
ticketing solution renewal with Masabi LLC. The offer from Masabi LLC to continue providing
EZFare mobile ticketing solution for a total contract amount not to exceed $1,200,000.00 for a
period of two years was determined to be fair and reasonable to the Authority.

40 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION / DBE BACKGROUND: The Office of Business Development does
not conduct Affirmative Action reviews or set DBE participation goals on governmental
contracts or Interagency Agreements.

5.0 POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: The contract will be funded through the General Fund, Management
Information Systems Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $1,200,000.00 for a
period of two years,




Staff Summary & Comments 2024-39
EZFare Mobile Ticketing Services
Page 2

7.0

8.0

9.0

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would suspend the robust, and
scalable mobile ticketing solution that leverages interlinking neighboring transit agencies with
riders utilizing the same solution, ultimately preventing the Authority from receiving mobile
ticketing revenue.

RECOMMENDATION: This project was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the May 7,
2024 Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee meeting. It is
recommended that the offer of Masabi LLC be accepted and the resolution adopted
authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a contract.

ATTACHMENTS: None.
Recommended and certified as appropriate to the

availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

neral Manager, Chief E Officer




RESOLUTION NO. 2024-39

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2024-080 WITH MASABI LLC TO PROVIDE
EZFARE MOBILE TICKETING SERVICES IN A TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT
NOT TO EXCEED $1,200,000.00 FOR A PERIOD OF TWO YEARS (GENERAL
FUND, MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SERVICES DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) requires a
renewal for its current mobile ticketing platform that will be ending May 31, 2024; and

WHEREAS, the Authority entered into an intergovernmental cooperative purchasing
agreement with NEORide Council of Governments (“NEORide"), as authorized by the Board of
Trustees under Resolution No. 2019-099; and

WHEREAS, NEORIde has renewed its existing cooperative purchasing agreement with
Masabi LLC, located at 1330 Avenue of the Americas, Suite 23A, New York, NY 10019, to offer
NEORIde's member transit agencies the EZFare mobile ticketing solution; and

WHEREAS, the offer from Masabi LLC is made available through NEORide in an
amount not to exceed $1,200,000.00 for a period of two years; and

WHEREAS, R.C. 306.43(J) authorizes the Authority to enter into intergovernmental
purchasing agreements; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the offer of Masabi
LLC to provide the EZFare mobile ticketing solution through NEORIide’s agreement with Masabi
LLC to be in the best interest of the Authority and recommends acceptance thereof by the Board
of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the offer of Masabi LLC to continue providing EZFare mobile ticketing
solution to the Authority be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. The General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and she is
hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Masabi LLC to provide mobile ticketing services.

Section 3. That said contract shall be funded through the General Fund, Management
Information Systems Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $1,200,000.00 for a
period of two years.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon future funding, compliance by the contractor to the specifications and addenda,
if any; the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance
requirements and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: May 21, 2024
President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Greater Cleveland Interoffice Memo
Regional Transit Authority

To: Mayor Paul A. Koomar, President
and Members, Board of Trustees
From: India L. Birdsong Terry
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer @
Date: May 16, 2024
Subject: Code Book Update

At the May 7, 2024 Committee of the Whole meeting, staff presented proposed revisions to the
Authority's Codified Rules and Regulations (“Code Book"). Following discussion and questions
from Board Members, staff recommends additional changes to Chapter 470 Real Estate
Policies, as follows:

1. Providing permissive authority for the General Manager, CEO to approve food and
beverage sales during special events. Chapter 470.09 (d)(11).

2. Clarifying that smoking is prohibited during special events at any Authority facility in
accordance with Ohio law prohibiting smoking in public places and places of
employment. Chapter 470.09 (d)(12).

3. Deleting Limited Use Agreements from Chapter 470 because the Authority uses
Licenses rather than Limited Use Agreements. Chapter 470.06.

Please call me if you have any questions or require additional information prior to Tuesday's
meeting.

Attachment: A. Redline of Chapter 470

IBT/ah



Form 100- @ Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

326 STAFF SUNMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
2024-40

470 REAL ESTATE POLICIES AND 850 PUBLIC ASSEMBLY ON

REPEALING CHAPTERS 1066 PROMOTIONAL ACTIVITIES AND 1094 [Date:
NEWSPAPER DISPENSING BOX POLICY AND AMENDING CHAPTERS | pay 16, 2024

AUTHORITY PROPERTY OF THE CODIFIED RULES AND Initiator:
REGULATIONS OF THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT | Engineering & Project
AUTHORITY Management

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval 0O Review/Comment 0O Information Only O Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will repeal Chapters 1066 Promotional Activities and 1094
Newspaper Dispensing Box Policy and amend Chapters 470 Real Estate Policies and 850
Public Assembly on Authority Property of the Codified Rules and Regulations (“Code Book") of
the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”).

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Policies and Procedures of the Board of Trustees were
codified in 1989, pursuant to Resolution No. 1989-176. The Code Book is undergoing a
comprehensive review and update so that the Code Book will conform to the current structure

and operations of the Authority.

The proposed revisions consolidate the policies relating to the Authority's real estate. The
content of Chapter 1066 Promotional Activities will be moved to Section 470.10 Use of
Authority Facilities for Special Events, a new section within Chapter 470. Chapter 470 will also
be updated to provide that permanent easements with a value of more than $10,000 will
require approval by the Board of Trustees, which is an increase from the $2,500 threshold that
was first established in 2004. Section 470.11 Items Intentionally Placed on Authority Property
will be added to authorize the removal of items placed on Authority property without
permission.

Chapter 1094 Newspaper Dispensing Box Policy will be repealed because paper newspapers
have become obsolete and the newspaper box program has been discontinued.

The wording of Chapter 850 Public Assembly on Authority Property will be updated to better
align with First Amendment principles and to make reference to new Section 470.10.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
AFFIRMATIVE ACTION / DBE BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: Adoption of the resolution will align the Code Book provisions with the
current operations of the Authority.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: Does not apply.

ALTERNATIVES: Not adopting this resolution. Not adopting this resolution will leave the Code
Book provision out of line with the current operations of the Authority.

RECOMMENDATION: This resolution was discussed at the May 7, 2024 Committee of
the Whole meeting and recommended, subject to modification of the language in Section
470.10(d), for consideration by the full Board of Trustees. It is recommended that this
resolution be adopted.




Staff Summary & Comments
Code Book Resolution

2024-40
Page 2

9.0 ATTACHMENTS:
A. Red-line showing repeal of Chapter 1066 Promotional Activities
B. Red-line showing repeal of Chapter 1094 Newspaper Dispensing Box Policy
C. Red-line of proposed amendments to Chapter 470 Real Estate Policies
D. Red-line of proposed amendments to Chapter 850 Public Assembly on Authority Property

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the

availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

Ay
eneral Manager, Chief éxe)c%ivé'oﬁicer




Attachment A to Staff Summary

EHAPTER—66
Promeotional-Activities

Mﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁiﬂﬂﬂﬂ—ﬂ#—fﬁegkﬂﬂﬁ— Fonoa2Ulhie el A ntheribefaet it esdhe
speeitl-events:




) -J-he-—re%&emen%s—ei—&ny—aﬁﬁe&b}e—laws 0T eusemetts—eontraetsor
other—agreements—the—Antherity—has -entered—inte—asseciated —with-g
facilibrwilltake precedenceover-the-provisiens-of this Poliey-whenever
appropriate-tia-given situation:

—Organtations-may-usethe faetlitvytor benefitsandtunelraisers—Fhese
groupsiray-selltickets prioto-the event butnetenthe premises orat






Attachment B to Staff Summary

CHADPTER 1094
FHAEE Ceamphanesdute, approval:
SRR ARG G e T B

17 ol all i P n t 3

Appravabefprejectsfor-acquisition-construction. and-improvement of-

facthities-and-equipment; and payment of operating expenses; terms-
MMMMM&HM—MS&B

WMMWM&%—M—%—I%




products—thatworddaot-beconsidered newspapers{eencral-or-resional civenlation)
APE—CXECH: chibited-from—the use of therity—preperty—ouch-medina—ha

-LGB4 OG—ARELIGAT-I-@-N-P RQGE«SS—AN—D—ER@GEDHRES

worli; ﬂgﬂd&fﬂ—ﬁf@ﬂ&-ﬂ&@l@ﬁ—]?tWﬂig—bh@iﬂﬂW@&F @f—trhe—pmgl am-—due—t@—bhe—mtm—ber

2






Inehapphentionshall-benecompanied by:




109409 —PERMIT STICKER.
f—Oub-Autherivissucd pernd
st rebes e Floure -y

h)—Permite

1%4n

Net
b 2172 e M oo



%@m&%&a&a&d@%m%&&%ﬁ%&&mﬁm&eﬂmﬂe@@meh@m
adopted-by-cities-and-communities-lnown-to-have-exasting-standardsand polieies:




approved-ases-

Figure3

Figure 3

Station Entrance







Z ainbi4

L
[8

Fauoui | sarour O satfoer (g
MALA IS MILA BV MITA LNOA
HH.\.h.q___h:,w__. M Hu_..m._w_.:w panpiLa g siaagy diyg
b - M2l X M1
uihg
-— niig U Ry HUIp]
uoLEMUIp| . sadwdsmap
sodedsmapy
LTy ]
IR perumy

ALIHOHLNY LISNYHL TVNDI93IY aNYITIATTD HILVIHOD




Attachment C to Staff Summary

CHAPTER 470
Real Estate Policies

470.01 Acquisitions of real property. 470.07 Limited use agreements.

470.02 Dispositions of real property. 470.08 Joint development

470.03 Leases. agreements.

470.04 Temporary easements. 470.09 Compliance with
Hederalfederal

470.05 Permanent easements. regulations.

470.06 License agreements. 470.10 Use of Authority facilities

470.11 ltems intentionally placed
on Authority property

CROSS REFERENCES
Powers and duties of the Authority — see R.C. 306.35
Board of Trustees - see ADM. Ch. 220

CEO.-General Manager/Secretary—Freasurer, Chicl Executive Officer - see ADM. Ch.

242
Hee—afF-Authorit

A

Public assemﬁi;_bn Authority property - see VEH. & OP. Ch. 850
Special event-Event usage-Use of RTA Real Property and Facilities - Administrative
Procedure No. 042

Cuyahoga County Board of Health Food Service License — see ccbh.net
Cleveland food sale regulations — see Cleveland Codified Ordinances Chapter 241
Lakewood food truck regulations — See Lakewood Codified Ordinances Chapter 743

470.01 ACQUISITIONS OF REAL PROPERTY.

Acquisitions of real property and eminent domain takings by the AuthorityGCRTA
require the recommendation of the €EO:-General Manager/Seeretary-Treasurer, Chief
Executive Officer and the approval of the Board of Trustees.

(Res. 2002-98. Passed 5-21-02; Res. 2004-92. Passed 6-15-04; Res. 2010-55. Passed
8-17-10; Res. 2016-70. Passed 8-16-16.)

470.02 DISPOSITIONS OF REAL PROPERTY.

Dispositions of real property require the recommendation of the CEO_General
Manager/Seeretary—Freasurer, Chief Executive Officer and the approval of the Board
of Trustees.

(Res. 2002-98. Passed 5-21-02; Res. 2004-92. Passed 6-15-04; Res. 2010-55. Passed
8-17-10: Res. 2016-70. Passed 8-16-16.)




470.03 LEASES.

(a) Leases of GERTA-ewnedreal property owned by t]h: {—rfrl%—l—:ﬁcf\mhm ity require
the recommendation of the CEO.-General Manager/Seers e¢, Chief Executive
Officer and the approval of the Board of Trustees for all eeaﬂ-&ets—leaqm leases that, originally
or after amendment or other means of continuous use by another party, either exceed
twenty-five thousand dollars ($25 000) in total revenue orand are for a term of more than
three years. GERTAThe Aut es-or-temporary-casementsthat
ﬁFB-WdE—iGPHLR@Hﬂ-HH&H&HL&h—LBESBS thatde-netexeeedwith terms of three years or less
and that provide total revenue less than or equal to twentyuﬁve thousand dollars ($25,000)
may be authorized by the €EO.-General Manager/Seeret: rer, Chief Executive

Officer w;thout approval by the Board of Trustees. Hewes«ei—:bmmﬂﬁﬂ—bg,—me—nﬁ&rd—m
Fr —meats-of-eontinuous-use-that-weould-nvelvedurinethe

ears-and/ortotal revenue—i-exeessof bventy Hive

thousand-doHars<$25.000)-

(b) Leases by-GCERTAof another party's real property by the Authority require the
recommendation of the C€EO.-General Manager/Seeretary—lreasurer, Chiel [xecutive
Officer and the approval of the Board of Trustees for all centraetsleases that, originally or
after amendment or other means of continuous use by the AuthorityGCRTA, cither exceed
twenty-five thousand dollars ($25 000) in total cost aiel/or are fol a term of more than three
years., GERTAD t+—provide—for—automatie
renewals—Leases i H‘taiwdﬂ—nai—e*eeeéwnh farms of thiss years or less and de-net-provide
fortotal revenuetn-exeess-of twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) or less in cost to the
Authority may be authorized by the €EO-General Manager/SeeretaryFreasurer. Chicf
Executive Officer without appmv&l by the Board Df Trustees However-approvabby—the
Bouwrd of Trusteess HOUS-USe e\cu-}ed-ﬁ%g—l-h{:ee—},-eﬂ-l—q
andler-thatwould-invel 3 werty—five-theusand
o 25000),

(Res. 2002-98. Passed 5-21-02; Res. 2004-92. Passed 6-15-04; Res. 2010-55. Passed
8-17-10; Res. 2016-70. Passed 8-16-16.)

470.04 TEMPORARY EASEMENTS.

(a) The granting or acceptance of temporary easements for construction, access, use,
etc. by the AuthorityGERTA for a term lessthanof three years or less and for less-than
twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) or less in cost or revenue may be authorized by the
EEOGeneral Manager/Seeretary—Treasurer, Chiel Executive Officer without approval
of the Board of Trustees.

(b) The granting or acceptance of temporary easements for construction, access, use,
etc. by the AuthorityGERTA: for a term_exceeding-mere-than three years andor formore
thancxceeding twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) in cost or revenue requires
recommendation of the EEO.—General Manager/Seeretarytreasurer. Chief Execcutive
Officer and approval of the Board of Trustees.

(Res. 2004-92. Passed 6-15-04; Res. 2010-55. Passed 8-17-10; Res. 2016-70. Passed
8-16-16.)




470.05 PERMANENT EASEMENTS.

(a) The conveyance or acceptance of a permanent easement by the Authority GCRTA with a
value less—thantweof ten thousand-five-hundred dollars ($2.50010.000) or less may be authorized
by the ££0-General Manager/Seeretary—Treasurer, Chief Executive Officer without approval of
the Board of Trustees.

(b) The conveyance or acceptance of any permanent easement by the AuthorityGERTA with
a value equalto-or in excess of tweten thousand—five-hundred dollars ($2.50010.000): requires
recommendation of the €E0-General Manager/Seeretary—Treasurer, Chiel Executive Officer and
approval of the Board of Trustees.
(Res. 2004-02. Passed 6-15-04; Res. 2010-55. Passed 8-17-10; Res. 2016-70. Passed
8-16-16.)

470.06 LICENSE AGREEMENTS.

(a) License agreements governing use of the Authority’sGERFA's real property or use
by the AuthorityGERTA of another party's rcal property that. originally or after amendment
or other means of continuous grantuse. exceed twenty-five thousand dollars ($25.000) in
revenue or fcost or_that exceed a term of three years require recommendation by the €EO;
General Manager/—Seeretury—treasurer. Chiel Executive Officer and the approval of the
Board of Trustees.

exeeed-twenty-five thousand clollars ($25,000) ﬂHevenue#wm and de—ne{—eaeeeeeitlmt have
a term of three years or less may be authorized by the CEO-General Manager/Seeretary—
Freasurer. Chicl Execulive Officer without approval by the Board of Trustees.

(Res. 2002-98. Passed 5-21-02; Res. 2004-92. Passed 6-15-04; Res. 2010-55. Passed
8-17-10; Res. 2016-70. Passed 8-16-16.)

4—79—9:—!—:!—[’&4—!—11!}9 USE- AGP:EEM—EN—TS—
i - : +CRTAthe-Authority's-real-property
r&;aeﬁy—thavt«--m isinally—or after

: heusand deHars
ation-by
—and the

or—tse—
(425 000} inrevenue-or- /-LE}H—(:}'
the—CEO—General -Manager -
appreval-of-the Beard-of Trustees:

tb—Limited—use—aereements—that—do—net—execeed—twentyfive thousanddellars

@%MWWWMMl by the CEO-General-Muanager!
Seeretary-Treasurer -the—-Board-of Frustees:

(—C—)—bkﬂﬁﬁétl—tlﬂﬂ-ﬂ“f&@!ﬂﬂ%—&ﬂ&k&dﬂ—b%

iy sGERTA -opertyeot 'e{mn-staﬂmg areaq:mm&—&nd—wnw—y—n—lgm—
aﬂway—pmwﬁ.—SﬁeﬁM—evmﬁ—u&age—&ﬂmeimmﬁ—Me—%*emed—bj—me

TG AL




470.08470.07 JOINT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS.

Joint development agreements require the recommendation of the €£0—-General
Manager/Seeretary—treasurer, Chief Executive Officer and the approval of the Board
of Trustees.

(Res. 2002-98. Passed 5-21-02; Res. 2004-92. Passed 6-15-04: Res. 2010-55. Passed
8-17-10; Res. 2016-70. Passed 8-16-16.)

470:49470.08 COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL REGULATIONS.

All real estate transactions involving Federal-federal funding must be
reviewed to determine compliance with Eederal-federal regulations.
(Res. 2002-98. Passed 5-21-02; Res. 2004-92. Passed 6-15-04; Res. 2010-55. Passed 8-
17-10; Res. 2016-70. Passed 8-16-16.)

470.09 USE OF AUTHORITY FACILITIES FOR SPECIAL EVENTS.

(a) _The Authority will permit the use of its facilities for special events
sponsored by organizations and members of the community so long as the use is not
inconsistent with the public's use and need of such facility. The use of Authority
facilities will be subject to certain terms and conditions as set forth below.

(b) Allowing its facilities to be used for special events and activities will
benefit the Authority in several ways:

(1) Provide revenue:

(2) _Help promote the existence and attractiveness of Authority services
and facilities:

(3) lmprove the Authority's public image and relations: and

(4) Facilitate positive neighbor relations with property owners and
communities adjacent to or near Authority facilities.

(c) The Authority reserves the right to deny the request of any group or
organization when a proposed use is inconsistent with the public interest: when the
Authority and/or general public will not benefit from the proposed use: when the
Authority will be negatively impacted; or when the group or organization refuses to
abide by the guidelines and requirements set forth herein.

(d) Guidelines and Requirements.

(1) Special events will be limited to passenger facilities (i.e. transit
stations. parking lots. walkways) and. on a selected basis., district
bus garages and other Authority property.

(2) Use of a facility cannot cause undue disruption to Authority
operations. customers. and/or employees.

(3) The group sponsoring the special event must agree to hold the
Authority harmless from any liability resulting from the event
and shall obtain insurance which names the Authority as an
additional insured and in an amount to be determined by the

Authority. If alcoholic beverages are to be served, then the policy




of insurance shall include a specific liquor liability endorsement.

(4) The sponsoring party of the special event must adhere to all rules
and regulations imposed by the Authority, including insurance and
fees. '

(5)  Food service and the dispensing of alcohol will be permitted
provided the sponsoring group obtains and provides the Authority a
copy ol any required insurance. permits, and/or licenses prior to the
event. The sponsoring party must provide all alecohol: B.Y.0.B.
(bring your own bottle) is not permitted.

(6) Unlawful activities. includings but not limited to gambling, are
specifically prohibited.

(7) The sponsoring party must apply for a permit for use of Authority
property for a special event. If a permit is aranted by the Authority.
the sponsoring party will execute. prior to facility usage. that written
permit or agreement acknowledging awareness and acceptance of
all facility usage rules and regulations.

(8) The requirements of any applicable laws or easements. contracts or
other agreements the Authority has entered into associated with a
facility will take precedence over the provisions of this policy
whenever appropriate in a given situation.

(9) _Organizations may use the facility for benefits and fundraisers.
These groups may sell tickets prior to the event but not on the
premises or at the door unless the Authority specifically allows
ticket sales on the premises for the event. The tickel. or an example
of the ticket. must be submitted to and approved by the Authority
prior to being sold by the organization.

(10) Permits issued to a sponsoring party must be used for the function
stated on the permit only.

(1L1) No food or alcoholic beverages mayate-to be sold on the premises
unless _explicitly authorized by the General Manager. Chiel
Executive Officer after all necessary food and/or liquor licenses
have been obtained and reviewed by the Legal Department. at-any

(12) Nosmoking is permitted nsideat any Authority facility/straeture.

(13) The sponsoring party shall sign all necessary permits and satisfy all
applicable requirements of the Authority and the municipality
where the facility is located.

(14) It will be the sponsoring party's responsibility to see that all
members of their event abide by Authority rules and regulations
regarding the special event. The Authority and/or local municipal
authority decisions with regard to traffic. crowd control. and general
welfare are final and binding,

(15) The General Manager. Chief Executive Officer shall assess an
administrative and/or usage fee for the special event. The fee(s) may
increase without notice. as determined by the discretion of the
General Manager. Chiel Executive Officer.

(16) The General Manager. Chief Executive Officer has the authority to




make reasonable exceptions to the provisions of this Policy when

the best interest of the Authority or the general public would be
served by doing so.

(17) The General Manager. Chief Executive Officer will determine
organizational responsibility [or administering this Paolicy.

470.10 I'TEMS INTENTIONALLY PLACED ON AUTHORITY PROPERTY

[t is the Authority’s responsibility to maintain its facilities in a safe and clean condition and
to operate efficiently and effectively. The Authority wishes to provide a pleasant
environment for its riders.

It is the policy of the Authority that any item intentionally placed on Authority property must

have authorization from the Authority before installation. Any item intentionally placed or
left on Authority property without prior authorization must be removed immediately by the
owner of the item. Otherwise, unapproved items will be removed bv the Authority or its
designee. The Authority will dispose of such items in accordance with the Authority's
Procurement Policies Section 410.01(a)(28). This policy does not applv to lost and found
items.




850.01
850.02
850.03
850.04

850.05

Attachment D to Staff Summary

CHAPTER 850
Public Assembly on Authority Property

Intent. 850.06 Time, place and manner of
Application of chapter. activities.

Definitions. 850.07 Denial, refusal and

Permit required; application cancellation of permits.
information. 850.08 Political campaign activity.
Permit: issuance;

transferability; renewal;

exclusions.

CROSS REFERENCES
Unauthorized use of property - see @hie-R.C. 2913.04
Disorderly conduct - see ©his-R.C. 2917.11
Misconduct involving a public transportation system - see Ohio
R.C.2917.41

Real Estate Policies - FIN Ch. 470
Use of authority facilities for special events - SER1066-02F1
Ch. 470.10

Political activily by employees - see Personnel Policies

850.01

(a) The

(1
(2

(3)
4

(3)
(6)

INTENT.

policies and guidelines established herein are necessary in order to:
Ensure that Authority property maintains its status as a non-public
forum;

Ensure that persons seeking to exercise constitutional rights toef freedom
andof speech, expression, and assembly on Authority property may do so
within the limitations of the policies and guidelines established herein,
Restrict the time, place, and manner of the activities described herein to
designated areas of Authority property;

Protect transit patrons using Authority property from repeated
communications or encounters which may constitute harassment or
intimidation of a captive audience;

Ensure the safe, free, and orderly flow of transit patron traffic through and
on Authority stations, premises, and vehicles; and

Further the purpose of the Authority, which is to transport passengers
safely and efficiently via bus and rail.

(b) A person who wishes to engage in activities governed by these policies and
guidelines on or at Authority premises, stations, and vehicles, including, but not



limited to, the distribution of literature, shall be protected in accordance with these
policies, provided the activities do not:
(1) Constitute commercial activities, unless by written commercial agreement
benefitting the Authority; or
(2) Interfere with the transportation function or safe operation of the
Authority stations, premises, or vehicles.
(Res. 1996-57. Passed 4-16-96; Res. 2010-53. Passed 8-17-10.)

850.02 APPLICATION OF CHAPTER.

The policies and guidelines established herein apply to all persons using Authority
premises, stations, vehicles, or other Authority property, whether Authority employees or
members of the public, including, but not limited to, Authority visitors, delivery
persons, contractors, and agents for the following activities:

(a) Commercial Activity, A person may not engage in any commercial activity on
Authority stations and premises except by written commercial agreement
benefitingbencfiting the Authority. Other commercial activity is expressly
prohibited on Authority property.

(b) Non-Commercial Free Speech Activity, As a non-public forum, the Authority
has authority to limit free speech activities on its property. A person desiring to
exercise constitutional freedoms, including, but not limited to, the distribution
of literature or solicitation of funds, on, in, within, or about Authority property
shall first obtain a written permit for these activities from the Authority. Free
speech activities may be exercised only in accordance with the restrictions
designated in the permit.

(Res. 1996-57. Passed 4-16-96; Res. 2010-53. Passed 8-17-10.)

850.03 DEFINITIONS.

For the purposes of this policy, the following terms have the meanings indicated:

(a) "Authority property" means all property owned, leased, operated, or
controlled by the Authority in connection with public transit activities,
including, but not limited to, all buses—+ail-earsvehicles used for
transporting passengers, station areas, entrances, platforms, plazas,
escalators, elevators, stairways, parking lots, transfer points: rapid-transit
vehieles—and other rapid stations.

(b) "Authorized" means acting pursuant to a written contract, permit, or other
evidence of right issued by the Authority.

(c) "Commercial activity" means any activity undertaken for profit, including, but
not limited to, the sale, provision, advertisement, or display of goods or
services; the exchanging, trading, buying, hiring, soliciting, or peddling of
commodities, goods, money, services, or property of any kind; or any other
revenue producing activity.

(d) "Emergency situation" means any event creating a condition or circumstance
that interferes with the safe or efficient operation of the Authority system, or
other conditions or circumstances as may be determined by the Authority to
endanger the health, safety, and welfare of persons on or upon Authority
property.

(e) "Free speech activity" means any manner of exercising constitutionally




protected freedoms of religion, speech, press, and assembly, including, but not
limited to, campaigning for political candidates and issues.

(f) "Person" means any individual, organization, firm, partnership, corporation,
company, association, or joint stock association, and includes the trustee,
receiver, committee, assignee, or other representative thereof.

(g) "Transit patron" means a person in or upon Authority property for the purpose
of using Authority public transportation service available at that site.

(h) "Vehicle" means all buses-and-rapid-transitearsvehicles used for transporting
passengers owned by and/or operated by the Authority.

(Res. 1996-57. Passed 4-16-96; Res. 2010-53. Passed 8-17-10.)

850.04 PERMIT REQUIRED; APPLICATION INFORMATION.

All persons desiring to use Authority property for non-commercial free speech
activities governed by these policies and guidelines shall submit to the General
Manager/Secretary-Treasurer of the Authority, or his or her designee, a written
request in a form prescribed by the Authority setting forth at least the following:

(a) The full name, mailing address, and telephone number of the entity/person

sponsoring, promoting, or conducting the proposed activity,

(b) A description of the proposed activity, indicating the type of communication to

be involved;

(¢) The dates and hours during which the activity is proposed to be carried out;

(d) The number of persons to be engaged in the activity;

(e) The specific area of Authority property in which the proposed activity is

planned; and

(f) Whether handbills, leaflets, circulars, or other printed material will be

distributed.
(Res. 1996-57. Passed 4-16-96; Res. 2010-53. Passed 8-17-10.)

850.05 PERMIT: ISSUANCE; TRANSFERABILITY; RENEWAL;
EXCLUSIONS.

(a) Upon receipt of a permit application containing the required information, as
stated above, the Authority will issue a permit to the applicant, subject to the limitations
set forth herein. The Authority will not exercise judgment regarding the purposeor
content of the activity or the viewpoints that are expressed.

(b) Permits to use Authority property, if granted, will be issued on a first-come,
first-served basis. As used herein, "first come" means the person who has first
completed the procedural guidelines set forth herein.

(c) Permits are not transferable or assignable.

(d) The permit shall authorize the holder to conduct the activity for the date and
duration of time defined in the permit.

(e) Permits may not be extended or renewed.

() Each permit shall specify the area, station, or property where the activity shall
take place.

(g) The Authority reserves the right to cancel any permit, with or without advance

notice to the permit holder.
(Res. 1996-57. Passed 4-16-96; Res. 2010-53. Passed 8-17-10.)




850.06 TIME, PLACE AND MANNER OF ACTIVITIES.
(a) Time Regulations. A permit holder shall conduct the free speech activity only
during the hour(s) prescribed in the permit.

(b) Place Regulations.

(1) Free speech activity may only be conducted in the area specifically
prescribed in the permit. In no circumstance shall a permit be issued for
activity on transit platforms or "in revenue service" transit vehicles.

(2) Free speech activity is specifically prohibited in any area that obstructs
the safe, efficient, free, and orderly flow of passengers' ingress or egress or
the operation of Authority business transactions.

(c) Manner Regulations,
(1) Free speech activity shall be conducted only in a conversational tone.
(2) The permit holder shall, upon request of an Authority employee, transit
police officer, or other law enforcement official, display the permit.
(3) In conducting free speech activity, a person may not:
A. Obstruct, delay, or interfere with the free movement of any other
person or seek to coerce or physically disturb any other person;

B. Use any sound or voice-amplifying apparatus on Authority property;

C. Conduct any activity in a misleading or fraudulent manner;

D. Erect a table, booth, or other structure unless approval is designated in
the permit;

E. Intentionally touch or make physical contact with another person

unless that person has consented to physical contact; and

F. Repeatedly attempt to distribute written or printed material to or
solicit funds from another person when that other person has
indicated to the solicitor that he or she is unreceptive.

(4) If printed material or other object is handed out, the individual designated
as the permit holder shall accept the responsibility of cleaning up or
paying for the clean-up of any material or objects left on Authority
property. A deposit may be required for this purpose.

(5) The failure of permit holder to remove all material that the permit
holder brought onto Authority property may be grounds for refusal to
grant future permits.

(6) The Authority will require the permit holder, or other person designated as
the responsible party in the permit, to post insurance before free speech
activity may commence. In determining the amount of insurance, the
Authority will consider, among other factors, the extent to which the
proposed activity increases the Authority's risk of liability.

(Res. 1996-57. Passed 4-16-96; Res. 2010-53. Passed 8-17-10.)

850.07 DENIAL, REFUSAL AND CANCELLATION OF PERMITS.

An application for a permit shall be denied and/or canceled if one or more of the
following ocecurs:

(a2) One or more of the statements in the permit application is untrue;

(b) The applicant has not furnished all the information required for the permit;



(¢) An earlier-filed permit was granted for the same time and place;

(d) A breach or violation of any provision of this chapter occurs, including, but
not limited to, failure to demonstrate evidence of requisite insurance; and/or

(¢) A review of the permit application indicates that the activity cannot be
conducted without violating this chapter.
(Res. 1996-57. Passed 4-16-96; Res. 2010-53. Passed 8-17-10.)

850.08 POLITICAL CAMPAIGN ACTIVITY.

(a) A permit is required for political campaign activity. A permit will only be
issued on a first-come, first-served basis for one campaign sponsor/candidate at any
location, accompanied by one assistant.

(b) All time, place, and manner regulations cited above, in Section 850.06, are
applicable.

(c) All restrictions and feesareprocedures contained in Section 470.09 Use of

Authority Facilities forthe Special Events,-Hsage Poliey—Chapter1066: are applicable.
(Res. 1996-57. Passed 4-16-96: Res. 2010-53. Passed 8-17-10.)




RESOLUTION NO. 2024-40

REPEALING CHAPTERS 1066 PROMOTIONAL ACTIVITIES AND 1094
NEWSPAPER DISPENSING BOX POLICY AND AMENDING CHAPTERS 470
REAL ESTATE POLICIES AND 850 PUBLIC ASSEMBLY ON AUTHORITY
PROPERTY OF THE CODIFIED RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE
GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 1989-176, the Board of Trustees ("Board") of the
Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) codified the resolutions establishing
its policies and procedures; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has conducted a review and determined that Chapters 1066
Promotional Activities and 1094 Newspaper Dispensing Box Policy should be repealed, and that
Chapters 470 Real Estate Policies and 850 Public Assembly on Authority Property should be
amended to update certain provisions to align them with the Authority's current operations.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That Code Book Chapters 1066 Promotional Activities and 1094 Newspaper
Dispensing Box Policy are hereby repealed in their entirety.

Section 2. That Code Book Chapter 470 Real Estate Policies is hereby amended to
read as specified in Attachment A hereto.

Section 3. That Code Book Chapter 850 Public Assembly on Authority Property is
hereby amended to read as specified in Attachment B hereto.

Section 4. That the Board of Trustees hereby waives the fourteen-day period provided
for in Article XI, Section 2 of the Bylaws.

Section 5. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Attachments: A. Chapter 470 Real Estate Policies
B. Chapter 850 Public Assembly on Authority Property

Adopted: May 21, 2024

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Attachment A to Resolution

CHAPTER 470
Real Estate Policies

470.01  Acquisitions of real property. 470.07 Limited use agreements.
470.02 Dispositions of real property. 470.08 Joint development
470.03 Leases. agreements.

470.04 Temporary easements. 470.09 Compliance with federal
470.05 Permanent easements. regulations.

470.06 License agreements. 470.10 Use of Authority facilities

for special events.
470.11 Items intentionally placed
on Authority property

CROSS REFERENCES
Powers and duties of the Authority —see R.C. 306.35
Board of Trustees - see ADM. Ch. 220
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer - see ADM. Ch. 242
Public assembly on Authority property - see VEH. & OP. Ch. 850
Special Event Use of RTA Real Property and Facilities - Administrative Procedure No.
042
Food sale regulations — See R.C. Chap. 3717
Cuyahoga County Board of Health Food Service License — see ccbh.net
Cleveland food sale regulations — see Cleveland Codified Ordinances Chapter 241
Lakewood food truck regulations — See Lakewood Codified Ordinances Chapter 743

470.01 ACQUISITIONS OF REAL PROPERTY.

Acquisitions of real property and eminent domain takings by the Authority require the
recommendation of the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer and the approval of the
Board of Trustees.

(Res. 2002-98. Passed 5-21-02; Res. 2004-92. Passed 6-15-04; Res. 2010-55. Passed
8-17-10; Res. 2016-70. Passed 8-16-16.)

470.02 DISPOSITIONS OF REAL PROPERTY.

Dispositions of real property require the recommendation of the General Manager,
Chief Executive Officer and the approval of the Board of Trustees.
(Res. 2002-98. Passed 5-21-02; Res. 2004-92. Passed 6-15-04; Res. 2010-55. Passed
8-17-10; Res. 2016-70. Passed 8-16-16.)

470.03 LEASES.

(a) Leases of real property owned by the Authority require the recommendation of
the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer and the approval of the Board of Trustees
for all leases that, originally or after amendment or other means of continuous use by
another party, either exceed twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) in total revenue or are



for a term of more than three years. Leases with terms of three years or less and that
provide total revenue less than or equal to twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) may
be authorized by the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer without approval by the
Board of Trustees.

(b) Leases of another party's real property by the Authority require the
recommendation of the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer and the approval of the
Board of Trustees for all leases that, originally or after amendment or other means of
continuous use by the Authority, either exceed twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) in
total cost or are for a term of more than three years. Leases with terms of three years or
less and twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) or less in cost to the Authority may be
authorized by the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer without approval by the
Board of Trustees.

(Res. 2002-98. Passed 5-21-02; Res. 2004-92. Passed 6-15-04; Res. 2010-55. Passed
8-17-10; Res. 2016-70. Passed 8-16-16.)

470.04 TEMPORARY EASEMENTS.

(a) The granting or acceptance of temporary easements for construction, access, use,
etc. by the Authority for a term of three years or less and for twenty-five thousand dollars
($25,000) or less in cost or revenue may be authorized by the General Manager, Chief
Executive Officer without approval of the Board of Trustees.

(b) The granting or acceptance of temporary easements for construction, access, use,
etc. by the Authority for a term exceeding three years or exceeding twenty-five thousand
dollars ($25,000) in cost or revenue requires recommendation of the General Manager,
Chief Executive Officer and approval of the Board of Trustees.

(Res. 2004-92. Passed 6-15-04; Res. 2010-55. Passed 8-17-10; Res. 2016-70. Passed
8-16-16.)

470.05 PERMANENT EASEMENTS.

(a) The conveyance or acceptance of a permanent easement by the Authority with a value of
ten thousand dollars ($10,000) or less may be authorized by the General Manager, Chief Executive
Officer without approval of the Board of Trustees.

(b) The conveyance or acceptance of any permanent easement by the Authority with a value
in excess of ten thousand dollars ($10,000) requires recommendation of the General Manager,
Chief Executive Officer and approval of the Board of Trustees.

(Res. 2004-02. Passed 6-15-04; Res. 2010-55. Passed 8-17-10; Res. 2016-70. Passed
8-16-16.)

470.06 LICENSE AGREEMENTS.

(a) License agreements governing use of the Authority’s real property or use by the
Authority of another party's real property that, originally or after amendment or other means
of continuous use, exceed twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) in revenue or cost or
that exceed a term of three years require recommendation by the General Manager, Chief
Executive Officer and the approval of the Board of Trustees.

(b) License agreements that generate revenue or incur cost of less than or equal to twenty-

2



five thousand dollars ($25,000) and that have a term of three years or less may be authorized
by the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer without approval by the Board of
Trustees.

(Res. 2002-98. Passed 5-21-02; Res. 2004-92. Passed 6-15-04; Res. 2010-55. Passed
8-17-10; Res. 2016-70. Passed 8-16-16.)

470.07 JOINT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS.

Joint development agreements require the recommendation of the General Manager,
Chief Executive Officer and the approval of the Board of Trustees.
(Res. 2002-98. Passed 5-21-02; Res. 2004-92. Passed 6-15-04: Res. 2010-55. Passed
8-17-10; Res. 2016-70. Passed 8-16-16.)

470.08 COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL REGULATIONS.

All real estate transactions involving federal funding must be reviewed to
determine compliance with federal regulations.
(Res. 2002-98. Passed 5-21-02: Res. 2004-92. Passed 6-15-04; Res. 2010-55. Passed 8-
17-10; Res. 2016-70. Passed 8-16-16.)

470.09 USE OF AUTHORITY FACILITIES FOR SPECIAL EVENTS.

(a) The Authority will permit the use of its facilities for special events
sponsored by organizations and members of the community so long as the use is not
inconsistent with the public's use and need of such facility. The use of Authority
facilities will be subject to certain terms and conditions as set forth below.

(b) Allowing its facilities to be used for special events and activities will
benefit the Authority in several ways:

(1) Provide revenue;

(2) Help promote the existence and attractiveness of Authority services
and facilities;

(3) Improve the Authority's public image and relations; and

(4) Facilitate positive neighbor relations with property owners and
communities adjacent to or near Authority facilities.

(¢) The Authority reserves the right to deny the request of any group or
organization when a proposed use is inconsistent with the public interest; when the
Authority and/or general public will not benefit from the proposed use; when the
Authority will be negatively impacted; or when the group or organization refuses to
abide by the guidelines and requirements set forth herein.

(d) Guidelines and Requirements.

(1) Special events will be limited to passenger facilities (i.e. transit
stations, parking lots, walkways) and, on a selected basis, district
bus garages and other Authority property.

(2) Use of a facility cannot cause undue disruption to Authority
operations, customers, and/or employees.

(3) The group sponsoring the special event must agree to hold the



(4)

&)

(6)
(7)

@®)

9

(10)

(1)

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

Authority harmless from any liability resulting from the event
and shall obtain insurance which names the Authority as an
additional insured and in an amount to be determined by the
Authority. If alcoholic beverages are to be served, then the policy
of insurance shall include a specific liquor liability endorsement.
The sponsoring party of the special event must adhere to all rules
and regulations imposed by the Authority, including insurance and
fees.
Food service and the dispensing of alcohol will be permitted
provided the sponsoring group obtains and provides the Authority a
copy of any required insurance, permits, and/or licenses prior to the
event, The sponsoring party must provide all alcohol; B.Y.O.B.
(bring your own bottle) is not permitted.
Unlawful activities, including but not limited to gambling, are
specifically prohibited.
The sponsoring party must apply for a permit for use of Authority
property for a special event. If a permit is granted by the Authority,
the sponsoring party will execute, prior to facility usage, that written
permit or agreement acknowledging awareness and acceptance of
all facility usage rules and regulations.
The requirements of any applicable laws or easements, contracts or
other agreements the Authority has entered into associated with a
facility will take precedence over the provisions of this policy
whenever appropriate in a given situation.
Organizations may use the facility for benefits and fundraisers.
These groups may sell tickets prior to the event but not on the
premises or at the door unless the Authority specifically allows
ticket sales on the premises for the event. The ticket, or an example
of the ticket, must be submitted to and approved by the Authority
prior to being sold by the organization.
Permits issued to a sponsoring party must be used for the function
stated on the permit only.
No food or aleoholic beverages may be sold on the premises unless
explicitly authorized by the General Manager, Chief Executive
Officer after all necessary food and/or liquor licenses have been
obtained and reviewed by the Legal Department.
No smoking is permitted at any Authority facility.
The sponsoring party shall sign all necessary permits and satisfy all
applicable requirements of the Authority and the municipality
where the facility is located.
It will be the sponsoring party's responsibility to see that all
members of their event abide by Authority rules and regulations
regarding the special event. The Authority and/or local municipal
authority decisions with regard to traffic, crowd control, and general
welfare are final and binding.
The General Manager, Chief Executive Officer shall assess an
administrative and/or usage fee for the special event. The fee(s) may

4



increase without notice, as determined by the discretion of the
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer.

(16) The General Manager, Chief Executive Officer has the authority to
make reasonable exceptions to the provisions of this Policy when
the best interest of the Authority or the general public would be
served by doing so.

(17) The General Manager, Chief Executive Officer will determine
organizational responsibility for administering this Policy.

470.10 ITEMS INTENTIONALLY PLACED ON AUTHORITY PROPERTY
It is the Authority’s responsibility to maintain its facilities in a safe and clean condition and
to operate efficiently and effectively. The Authority wishes to provide a pleasant
environment for its riders.

It is the policy of the Authority that any item intentionally placed on Authority property must
have authorization from the Authority before installation. Any item intentionally placed or
left on Authority property without prior authorization must be removed immediately by the
owner of the item. Otherwise, unapproved items will be removed by the Authority or its
designee. The Authority will dispose of such items in accordance with the Authority's
Procurement Policies Section 410.01(a)(28). This policy does not apply to lost and found
items.



Attachment B to Resolution

CHAPTER 850
Public Assembly on Authority Property

850.01 Intent. 850.06 Time, place and manner of

850.02 Application of chapter. activities.

850.03 Definitions. 850.07 Denial, refusal and

850.04 Permit required; application cancellation of permits.
information. 850.08 Political campaign activity.

850.05 Permit: issuance;
transferability; renewal;
exclusions.

CROSS REFERENCES
Unauthorized use of property - see R.C. 2913.04
Disorderly conduct - see R.C. 2917.11
Misconduct involving a public transportation system - see
R.C.2917.41
Real Estate Policies - FIN Ch. 470
Use of authority facilities for special events - FIN Ch. 470.10

Political activity by employees - see Personnel Policies

850.01
(a) The
(h

)

)
)

(5)
(6)

INTENT.

policies and guidelines established herein are necessary in order to:
Ensure that Authority property maintains its status as a non-public
forum;

Ensure that persons seeking to exercise constitutional rights to freedom of
speech, expression, and assembly on Authority property may do so within
the limitations of the policies and guidelines established herein;

Restrict the time, place, and manner of the activities described herein to
designated areas of Authority property;

Protect transit patrons using Authority property from repeated
communications or encounters which may constitute harassment or
intimidation of a captive audience;

Ensure the safe, free, and orderly flow of transit patron traffic through and
on Authority stations, premises, and vehicles; and

Further the purpose of the Authority, which is to transport passengers
safely and efficiently via bus and rail.

(b) A person who wishes to engage in activities governed by these policies and
guidelines on or at Authority premises, stations, and vehicles, including, but not
limited to, the distribution of literature, shall be protected in accordance with these
policies, provided the activities do not:



(1) Constitute commercial activities, unless by written commercial agreement
benefitting the Authority; or

(2) Interfere with the transportation function or safe operation of the
Authority stations, premises, or vehicles.
(Res. 1996-57. Passed 4-16-96; Res. 2010-53. Passed 8-17-10.)

850.02 APPLICATION OF CHAPTER.

The policies and guidelines established herein apply to all persons using Authority
premises, stations, vehicles, or other Authority property, whether Authority employees or
members of the public, including, but not limited to, Authority visitors, delivery
persons, contractors, and agents for the following activities:

(a) Commercial Activity. A person may not engage in any commercial activity on
Authority stations and premises except by written commercial agreement
benefiting the Authority. Other commercial activity is expressly prohibited on
Authority property.

(b) Non-Commercial Free Speech Activity. As a non-public forum, the Authority
has authority to limit free speech activities on its property. A person desiring to
exercise constitutional freedoms, including, but not limited to, the distribution
of literature or solicitation of funds, on, in, within, or about Authority property
shall first obtain a written permit for these activities from the Authority. Free
speech activities may be exercised only in accordance with the restrictions
designated in the permit.

(Res. 1996-57. Passed 4-16-96; Res. 2010-53. Passed 8-17-10.)

850.03 DEFINITIONS.

For the purposes of this policy, the following terms have the meanings indicated:

(a) "Authority property" means all property owned, leased, operated, or
controlled by the Authority in connection with public transit activities,
including, but not limited to, all vehicles used for transporting passengers,
station areas, entrances, platforms, plazas, escalators, elevators, stairways,
parking lots, transfer points and other rapid stations.

(b) "Authorized" means acting pursuant to a written contract, permit, or other
evidence of right issued by the Authority.

(c) "Commercial activity" means any activity undertaken for profit, including, but
not limited to, the sale, provision, advertisement, or display of goods or
services; the exchanging, trading, buying, hiring, soliciting, or peddling of
commodities, goods, money, services, or property of any kind; or any other
revenue producing activity.

(d) "Emergency situation" means any event creating a condition or circumstance
that interferes with the safe or efficient operation of the Authority system, or
other conditions or circumstances as may be determined by the Authority to
endanger the health, safety, and welfare of persons on or upon Authority
property.

(e) "Free speech activity" means any manner of exercising constitutionally
protected freedoms of religion, speech, press, and assembly, including, but not
limited to, campaigning for political candidates and issues.

(f) "Person" means any individual, organization, firm, partnership, corporation,



company, association, or joint stock association, and includes the trustee,
receiver, committee, assignee, or other representative thereof.

(g) "Transit patron" means a person in or upon Authority property for the purpose
of using Authority public transportation service available at that site.

(h) "Vehicle" means all vehicles used for transporting passengers owned by and/or
operated by the Authority.
(Res. 1996-57. Passed 4-16-96; Res. 2010-53. Passed 8-17-10.)

850.04 PERMIT REQUIRED; APPLICATION INFORMATION.

All persons desiring to use Authority property for non-commercial free speech
activities governed by these policies and guidelines shall submit to the General
Manager/Secretary-Treasurer of the Authority, or his or her designee, a written
request in a form prescribed by the Authority setting forth at least the following:

(a) The full name, mailing address, and telephone number of the entity/person

sponsoring, promoting, or conducting the proposed activity;

(b) A description of the proposed activity, indicating the type of communication to

be involved:

(c) The dates and hours during which the activity is proposed to be carried out;

(d) The number of persons to be engaged in the activity;

(e) The specific area of Authority property in which the proposed activity is

planned; and

() Whether handbills, leaflets, circulars, or other printed material will be

distributed.
(Res. 1996-57. Passed 4-16-96; Res. 2010-53. Passed 8-17-10.)

850.05 PERMIT: ISSUANCE; TRANSFERABILITY; RENEWAL;
EXCLUSIONS.

(a) Upon receipt of a permit application containing the required information, as
stated above, the Authority will issue a permit to the applicant, subject to the limitations
set forth herein. The Authority will not exercise judgment regarding the content of the
activity or the viewpoints that are expressed.

(b) Permits to use Authority property, if granted, will be issued on a first-come,
first-served basis. As used herein, "first come" means the person who has first
completed the procedural guidelines set forth herein.

(¢) Permits are not transferable or assignable.

(d) The permit shall authorize the holder to conduct the activity for the date and
duration of time defined in the permit.

(e) Permits may not be extended or renewed.

(f) Each permit shall specify the area, station, or property where the activity shall
take place.

(g) The Authority reserves the right to cancel any permit, with or without advance

notice to the permit holder.
(Res. 1996-57. Passed 4-16-96; Res. 2010-53. Passed 8-17-10.)

850.06 TIME, PLACE AND MANNER OF ACTIVITIES.
(a) Time Regulations. A permit holder shall conduct the free speech activity only
during the hour(s) prescribed in the permit.



(b) Place Regulations.

(1) Free speech activity may only be conducted in the area specifically
prescribed in the permit. In no circumstance shall a permit be issued for
activity on transit platforms or "in revenue service" transit vehicles.

(2) Free speech activity is specifically prohibited in any area that obstructs
the safe, efficient, free, and orderly flow of passengers' ingress or egress or
the operation of Authority business transactions.

(c) Manner Regulations,

(1) Freespeech activity shall be conducted only in a conversational tone.
(2) The permit holder shall, upon request of an Authority employee, transit
police officer, or other law enforcement official, display the permit.

(3) In conducting free speech activity, a person may not:
A. Obstruct, delay, or interfere with the free movement of any other
person or seek to coerce or physically disturb any other person;

B. Use any sound or voice-amplifying apparatus on Authority property;

C. Conduct any activity in a misleading or fraudulent manner;

D. Erecta table, booth, or other structure unless approval is designated in
the permit;

E. Intentionally touch or make physical contact with another person

unless that person has consented to physical contact; and

F. Repeatedly attempt to distribute written or printed material to or
solicit funds from another person when that other person has
indicated to the solicitor that he or she is unreceptive.

(4) If printed material or other object is handed out, the individual designated
as the permit holder shall accept the responsibility of cleaning up or
paying for the clean-up of any material or objects left on Authority
property. A deposit may be required for this purpose.

(5) The failure of permit holder to remove all material that the permit
holder brought onto Authority property may be grounds for refusal to
grant future permits.

(6) The Authority will require the permit holder, or other person designated as
the responsible party in the permit, to post insurance before free speech
activity may commence. In determining the amount of insurance, the
Authority will consider, among other factors, the extent to which the
proposed activity increases the Authority's risk of liability.

(Res. 1996-57. Passed 4-16-96; Res. 2010-53. Passed 8-17-10.)

850.07 DENIAL, REFUSAL AND CANCELLATION OF PERMITS.
An application for a permit shall be denied and/or canceled if one or more of the
following occurs:

(a)
(b)
(c)
(@)

One or more of the statements in the permit application is untrue;

The applicant has not furnished all the information required for the permit;
An earlier-filed permit was granted for the same time and place;

A breach or violation of any provision of this chapter occurs, including, but

not limited to, failure to demonstrate evidence of requisite insurance; and/or



(e) A review of the permit application indicates that the activity cannot be
conducted without violating this chapter.
(Res. 1996-57. Passed 4-16-96; Res. 2010-53. Passed 8-17-10.)

850.08 POLITICAL CAMPAIGN ACTIVITY.

(a) A permit is required for political campaign activity. A permit will only be
issued on a first-come, first-served basis for one campaign sponsor/candidate at any
location, accompanied by one assistant.

(b) All time, place, and manner regulations cited above, in Section 850.06, are
applicable.

(c) All restrictions and procedures contained in Section 470.09 Use of Authority

Facilities for Special Events, are applicable.
(Res. 1996-57. Passed 4-16-96: Res. 2010-53. Passed 8-17-10.)



326
07-03-97

Form 100- @ Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

TITLE/DESCRIPTION:

Resolution No.:
2024-41

APPROPRIATING THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT
AUTHORITY'S EXPENDITURES OR QUTLAYS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR

Date:
May 16, 2024

("FY") 2025 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BUDGET

Initiator:
Office of Management
& Budget

ACTION REQUEST:
g Approval ] Review/Comment [ Information Only 7 Other

1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will authorize appropriations for Fiscal Year 2025 ("FY
2025") for the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's (“*Authority”) Capital

Improvement Budget covering locally funded and grant-funded projects.

2.0 DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: FY 2025 begins January 1, 2025 and ends
December 31, 2025. There is a six-month process to incorporate new or revised grant
funded capital projects into the Northeast Ohio Area-wide Coordinating Agency's
(“NOACA") Transportation Improvement Plan ("TIP") and Ohio’'s State Transportation
Improvement Plan (“STIP") prior to their inclusion in any current and future federal and non-
federal grant programs. In order to advance the availability of capital grant funds for the
upcoming fiscal year, the development of the FY 2025 Capital Improvement Budget began
in September 2023 and involved extensive staff analysis and preparation as well as one
meeting of the Board's Operational Planning and Infrastructure Committee on May 7, 2024.
One public hearing was held on May 7, 2024 to discuss the proposed FY 2025 Capital
Improvement Budget. The Capital Improvement Budget proposed for adoption herein
represents the Authority’s spending plans for capital improvements throughout the transit

system in FY 2025.
3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
4.0 DBE/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

5.0 POLICY IMPACT: The FY 2025 Capital Improvement Budget provides for the upkeep of
the Authority's existing infrastructure, facilities, equipment, vehicle replacement programs
and also provides for the implementation of projects included in the Long-Range Plan.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: The proposed FY 2025 Capital Improvement Budget provides the
budget authority for the spending of $181,740,767 for capital improvement projects, of which
$177,102,767 is for the RTA Development Fund and $4,638,000 is for the RTA Capital

Fund.

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Modify the proposed FY 2025 Capital Improvement Budget by adding or
subtracting expenditures or revenues for specific capital projects, or delay adoption of the
proposed Capital Improvement Budget, which would delay the availability of grant funds in

the upcoming fiscal year.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: The proposed FY 2025 Capital Improvement Budget was reviewed
May 7, 2024 by the Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee and is recommended
for adoption by the Board of Trustees. It is recommended that the Board approve the

proposed FY 2025 Capital Improvement Budget as proposed herein.




Staff Summary & Comments
FY 2025 Capital Improvement Plan Budget

Page 2

9.0 ATTACHMENTS:

TmoOw»

2025 — 2029 Combined Capital Improvement Plan

2025 — 2029 RTA Development Fund Capital Improvement Plan
2025 — 2029 RTA Capital Fund Capital Improvement Plan
Capital Improvement Fund Balance Analysis

RTA Development Fund Balance Analysis

RTA Routine Capital Fund Balance Analysis

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the availability
of funds, legal form and conformance with the Procurement
requirements.

L1

2024-41

i
/General Manager, Chief Exetufive Officer



veL'Z01°009%  OLZ'€IS'SL$  198°118°98%  cre'Ovy'LZLS ZSYPES'SELS Z92°0vLL8LS SIvioL
000'008'L$ 000'SLES 000'S.L5$ 000'S.LE$ 000°GLE$ 000°00£S Sigjua) ysuel]
498°06L°ZvLS  000'6LL°LLS  198'960'6L%  000'SZE'LES  000°009'2Z%  000'0S9'ivs syoafoud ey
198'v¥2'66% 198'255°6% 000'0SZ'YL$  000°0SL'€L$  000°00S'02$  000'Z69°Lvs weiboud 183 j1BY
861°006'72$ 000°000°2$ 000°'000°2$ 6¥Z'22E'7$ v18°1£8'7$ S20'07L' 1S "quisy “1adQyjule sanusAsId
618°206°L9% 9.5'1¥8'28 9.5'1¥8'2$ 9.5°1¥8'Z$ 916°L¥6'81S  SIS'LPPYES sjoafoug 18430
000'0Z5'28% 000'00Z'6L$  000°5E8°L$ 000°5Z0'vL$  000'S£8'9Z  000'SZ9'vLS sjuawanoJd i) san1oey
0.Z'681'99% 000'0Z1°5$ 0SL'¥SE'9LS  000°06Z'9LS  00S'O¥PE'9LS  OZO'VBOZTLY sajalyap g Juswdinbz
£50'68L'ZLLE  L92'S18'L1S  B9Z'SLBLLS  BLS'I90'0ES  ZOS'6ETLMS  L69'L0Z'6Z$ sasng
000's90'01L$ 000°0SS'ZS ooo‘0szs 000°0S¥'Z% 000'51LE VS 0% sabeteg sng
6202-5202 6202 8z0Z 1z0Z 9z0Z Sz0z
IV10L AYO0D3LVYD L03rodd
132dng aaNiginod

NY1d LNIWIAOUINI TV LIdVD 620Z - SZ0Z

7 JUSWIYORY




vev'PLS 2SS 0LL'E6Z'LLS  LLL'SSZ'I8S  EE'OVE'OLLS ZS6'CB6'0€LS L19L'T0LLLLS SIV.LOL
000'008'L$ 000°52€% 000°6LE% 000°s2e4 000'5LES oo0'c0E$ slajuag jisued]
198°06L°Zv1$  000'6LL'LLS  L98°960'6L$  000'SZE'E$  000'009'2Z%  000'0S9°.bS s198foid |ley
198'vL'66$ £98'285'6$ 000°0SZ'PLS  0000SZ'tl$  000'005'0Z$  000°Z63°LPS weiboud Jeg ey
861'006'2Z$ 000°000'L$ 000°000°£$ 6V2'2ZE'F$ vi8'4£8'2$ SL0'0VL'LS "quiey 1adQyjulep sapuaAI
648'£06°19% 915°L¥8'TS 9L5°Lp8'ZS 9.5°1p8'T$ 9.5 IP6'8LS SIS IFTPES syoafoud 18yi0
000°'0LL'69% 000°069'3L$  000°'SLZ'S$ 000's9P‘ LIS 000°SLZ'PEZS  000S90°ZLS sjuawancudw) sanijioey
029°90%'95% 000°0SE's$ 000'0SE'vi$  000'0SE'vE$  000°0SE'PLS  0Z9°900°0LS saja1ysA B Juawdinbz
ES0'68L'ZLLS  L9Z'GL8'LLS  89Z'SLB'LLS  BIS'L90°0ES  ZOS'GET'LLS  LEP'LOZ'6ZS sasng
000'590°0L$ 000°085'Z$ 000°05Z$ 000°'05¥°2$ 000'S18'$ 0% sabeseg sng
6202-5202 6202 8202 2202 9z0z SZ0Z
WLOL AHODILYD L23r0dd

aNNd INJWNDOTIAIA V1Y

NV'1d LNIINIJAOHINI TV.LIdVD 6202 - SZ02

g Jusyoeny




NV1d LNIINIAOHUCINI TTVLIdVD 6202 - $202

D IS WIYDE Y

059°2£5'22% 000°'08Z'v$ 051'%95'p$ 000'005'+$ 005'055'+$ 000°8E9°F$ STV.LIOL
0s$ 0% 0 0% 0% 0$ sigjua) JSUBIL
0% 0% 0% 0f 0% 0% sjaaloud |1ey
0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0$ wesBoud JeD |1ey
0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% ‘quuiay “JedQ/ulely srjuanaig
0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% sjaalold Jay10
000°0S2'Z1$ 000'0L5°Z$ 000°0952$ 000°095'Z$ 000'095°Z$ 000°095'2$ syuawaosdw) sanijioey
0552826 000°0LL°L$ 051'700'Z$ 000°0¥6'L$ 005'066°L$ 000°8£0'2$ sajaiyap g wawdinbz
0% 0% 0% 0% 0$ 0$ sasng
0% 0 0% 0% 0% 0% sabeles sng
mm._ﬂhwm._.m_m 8202 8202 120z 920z 5202 R —
I LdYD V1Y




6E0°LLB'6VE 0L L6BTVE $ 0TIE'SST'E8T
£S6'S90"LEE 0TE'SOT'66T £90°78£'09C
Z80'TI8ZT T6E'T6L'EY 9vT'EL8'TT
EVEOVPTZT ZISH'PES'SET L9L°0FL T8T
EVEOVY'TZT ZSt'PES'SET LOLOFL TIBT
000'0F6'T 005066'T 000'8£0°C
000°095°2 000°095°2 000°095°C
EPEOF6OTT 7S6'E86'0ET L94TOTLLT
9ZF 1SZPET P89ZE6LT ET0°¥I9'v0T
6SS'E09°GE TL0'ST9'0E 8EP'PL08Z
000°000'0T 000'000'0T 000°000°0T
6S5'E09'ST 7L0'S19'02 8EF'PL0'ST
000°00T‘T 00000192 000°009'sE

- 000°000'SZ 000°005'vE
000°00T'T 00000T'T 000°00T'T
£98'L¥S'L6 ELLTISTTT SLS6E6'OVT
000°000'ST 000°'000'02 000°000°02
£98°/p5'T8 €L4'T19°Z0T G/S'6E6'0TT

uejd ue|d 128png
LTOZ A4 9Z0Z Ad SZ0Z Ad

sauejeg sulpuj pajraloid
aJuejeg Suiuuidag
(aseasdag) aseaudu| 19
saunlipuadxy jejoL
AepinQ |eaide) |ejo)
|eyde) aupnoy
SJUeUIIUIEN 1355y
pund juawdojanaq - Aejyhp jended
AejinQ |ende)
Saunjipuadxy
snuansy [e1o]
sdajsued) [e1o]
pund salasay WoJj Jajsuel]
pund [eJBUI5) WO} J3JSUBL]
siajsuel]
anuanay JaylQ [e1o0l
Inuanay I3Yi0
SWOJU| JUIWISIAUY
anuaAY 13410
SaNU3AY 21e3S [ |eiapad |e10L
sjuelq [eude) 21e318
siuelg [epde) |elapay
sanuanay Nels [ |erapady
sanuansy

sisAjeuy asuejeg pung Juswanoiduwj [eude)

@ uawyoeny



S 108 pesInay FE2-FL-5Bud A30 1Y 6202-520T

0L jo y abeg

000's80'04 000'055°T 000052 000'05H'T 000518 [ SFOVHEHYD SNg - V10l
000°05Z spund 2207 620Z Ad
000°052 spund |e207 BZ0Z A4
000'052 spun4 |2207 LZ0T Ad
000°052 spun{ |e207 5Z0Z Ad
000°000°L 000'0SE 000°05Z 000'0SE 000°052 o 3N |00d UoRIaold B4
000'00E'E SiUEIS) ENLUOS (B8PS BEZOE Add
000°00L" SjUBIS) BINUUOS [BJSPa4 BZ0T Add
000°0kL SjUBIE) BINLUC |BJBEaS SZOZ A4
000'0FL'y 0000082 0 000'00L'E 000°0FL 0 3N wesBoad Juamadejday Wi
000°528°} SjUelg) B|nUUOS [B8Pa] SEOE Add
000'549'} o 0 0 000°549' 0 MIN. juswaseday SHSY
000°05E" ) siuelS) g|nluoy [2I8pad SZ0T Add
00005 0 0 0 000°05E' | 0 TN, USEA JOo1aT Juaiuaoe|day JED
000°005 JUELE) BINWUIDS [BIBPAS 8Z0Z A
000'008 JUBIS) BINUWLIOS [BIBPad STOT A
000°00E"+ 0 0 000'008 000'008 0 OFEO0SEZ SWIN sng § JsueJeIRd
SIOVEYD Sna
SIOVHYD Snda
6202-5202 |6Z0T A A LZ0Z 9Z0¢ Sz0C H3Igmnn FJWYN L2IM0HEd [ AMOD31YD
SIVLOL 133roHd
F2dN0S ONIONNL 3LYdIDILNY
d Juswydeny - gdNn4d LNINdOT13INAIA V1Y
NY1d LNIWIAOHdINI TTVLIdVYD 6202 - S202
ALIHOHLNY LISNVEL TYNOIDIYH ANVIIATTD HALYINHD




SPCLOE pasihey FE-FL-5-BUld A3 V1Y 6Z0Z-SE0Z

01 40 g sfiey

000°'000°8

000'009't 000'009°L 000'009'1 000°009°L 000'009'L weiboid juawanosdw| JIsueseied JEI0L-qNS
000°008 SEIS) BINUUOS [EI3Pa] BZ0T Add
000°00E OIES WIWIOM 8202 Ad
oooooe SJUBLS) BINULIDS [BIEPa4 LZ0T Add
000°008 QLES WOWOMN 8202 Ad
000‘00E SuRLS BINULIDS |EF3Pa4 9Z0Z Add
000008 OLES WIWOMN L20T Ad
000" 008 SWeIS) BINULIOS |erapad STOZ Add
000008 OLES WIWOMN §202 Ad
000008 SBIS) BINULIOY |etapad FZ0T Add
fali el OLES WIOWION SZ0Z Ad
Q00°000°8 000'008°L 0no'00g' L 000'008'L a00'0na‘L 000'008°L CFODBEELD DLES WOWON-58sng lIsueleled
WYHO0Ed INSWADV 1d3d LISNvHLvavd
EO0E'SS0'E0L LLS"8R6'S) 815865 B9L'PEE'SE ZSLZOP GL Lpl'0RE'LT weabiosg juawascsduw) sng o L-qng
052 L5’ SiLEUS) B|NULOY [Bs8Pa 6Z0E Add
LL5'BEE'SE L15'886'S1 0 ] 0 o 200680y preY JUN LOG0 BEOT A4S
FIE GGZBSE'S RIS DYIND LOO0 BZ0E A4S
0SE'L¥S'S SjURIS) BINULUO |Bs8pad BZOT Ad4
a15'386'51 1] BLS'REE'S) 0 0 o Z00'690'F poMy dLN 1000 SE02 A4S
FE 95 BSE'Y UsID DYIND L1000 SZ0T A4S
005" L8t'S SIUEIS) BNULOS (BP9 920F Add
89 'YEE 0T o i §9.'PEE'ST ] o Z00'690' peEmy LN 1000 L20E AJS
SN 952'BS9°BL Wels DYIND 1000 L20T A4S
OB LIZ'09 weibold wewede|day sng 6Z02-LZ0T
054'E2F'S SIUEIS) B|NULC [58PA4 SZOT Add
T5LESFSE o 0 o 5LZHF'SL ] Z00's80'y presy d LN LOO0 ST0T A4S
ELTR 000'055'S WeIs DYIND LOO0 S202 A4S
000'000' 374 FZOZ A4
000's84 SWEIS) BINMUUCH [RlRpR4 FEOE A4
Lrd'0FELE 0 ] 0 0 Lrl'0BE'LE Lri'0L9'e presy d L LOG0 S2OT A4S
ETTS Qano'ses'aL WIS DWIND LOG0 S208 A4S
E66F'EFB'Zr wesficud juslaoe|day snE 9Z0Z-FZ0T
WYH90Ed INFNIACDHdNI SNE
SLNINIDIVId3H sng
6Z02-SC0Z [6TOT 8202 LZ0Z 9Z0E SZT0T H3aINNN JINYN L23rodd / AMODILYD
SIVLOL L23roHd
J2dN0S ONIANNL 31LYdIDILNY
@ 3usWydERY - ANNH LNINDOTIAIA VLY
NY1d LNJWWIAOHINI TVLIdVD 6202 - S20Z
ALIMOHLNY LISNVHL TYNOIDIYH ANVYIIATTD HILVINHD




04 Jo g afieg
S|¥ L0 PEsINY FE-FL-G-BUld A3 Y1H 6Z0Z-5E0T

00056 2r 000'sL8'0L 000'5L6 ooo'saL' L 000'00E"61L 000°069° uopeIqeyay abpug o -qng
000'008'0L JUBIE) BITHAUO [BIBPEY §E0Z A4
000'005 WEID) BINUUOY [RI3P24 L208 Add
O00'00E" 1L 000°008 0L 000’005 0 il 1] ST (ZUd Janoiiglioalold aBpLg yoel) wan
a0'00o'o00's & 1Boud wawanoudw) abpug 1OASN FZOT AL
oooon'sio's $ JUEJE)Y BjMILIDY [BIEPaS STOE Ad4
o0ooo'sEs % JUBIS) BruLo [BRPaY FE0E Add
000'000°ZE ] 0 (1] 000'540'1 L 000526 06ECOF0Zd AWED e SN Jena pyY sseooy aBpug HoeI 4o qeysy
00005 L' JUBIE) BInULC [Rrepad 9Z0F Add
0oo'ose WEID) BruoY [eiapay SZ0E A4
00o'0no'e ] 0 000'0s1'L 000'0sg 0 SN peoy leued sBpLg HIeL| 4O qeySy
000°51 spung |B307 6202 Ad
000'5L spund (B30T §Z0Z Ad
000°51 spund [B207 LZ0Z Ad
000'5.LY Spund [B307 SZ0Z Ad
00D°GL spuny (307 §Z0Z Ad
000'S66 000'sk 000'Sit 000'se 000'SLi oS 0.Z00802d weiboig uonoadsu) a6pug woea)
000'006'S WEIS) BInUUC [elepad SZ0E Ad-
0o0'osL's elsy enulo [B1apa4 pE0E Add
00005901 0 ] 0 000'006'9 000°05L'E JAIN. £ 5 T 95Bld qeuay abpug 1anper, - ‘qeysy abpug wori)
NOILLVLNIBvHId 390188
SININIAOCHINI SAILIDYS
£50'681TLE LOT'SLB LL 892'5L8'L) a15°L90°08 z05'68T'LL L6¥ LOZ'6T S3sng - IvLioL
05L°EEL') 052"9ZT 05.'922 054928 05.1'922 054922 wesboud sped aredg sng :|ejol-qng
05L'928 JUElS) BjNULIC [B19pa4 BEOE Ad<
054928 WEBLD) EiNULCS [eIBpa4 LZ0E Add
05L'92E RIS ENULICS [BI1BPa4 9Z0E Add
054928 JUBLD) EJNULICS [B1BPa SZ0E Add
05L'928 JUBIS) EINULICS [B1BPa $Z0E Add
05L'EEL'L 06! '92E 054'528 051972 054'928 05L'922 O0LOBESLd weibosd spegd aueds jepdes | 4asng
WYHOOHd S1dvd 30vds sng
6Z0Z-5Z0C (6202 8Z0Z LE0T 9Z0T T4 ir4 HIEWNN AWYN L2Irodd / A4093LYD
SIVLOL 123rodd
F27HNOS DNIANNL A3 LYdIJILNY
a juswiyoeny - dNNd LNIINdO13AIA V.1H
NV1d LNJINIAOHINI TVLIdYD 6202 - SZ0T
ALIHOHLNY LISNVYL TYNOIDIY ANVIIATTO HILVYIND




SPCLOE pasuay FE-Fl-5-|BUI4 AJQ W1Y SZ0E-5Z0Z

ol jo t abed

000'0.LL'69 | 000'068's1 000'sL2's 000°59F°LL 000'522'vZ 000°590'Z ) SLNINIAOHINI STILMIDVA - TVLOL
000'sER'9T 000°GL8'S o00'00% 000008 000'SLE Y 000'5LE'L SaNjIDe S SpIM-WEISAS Kelo]-qng
0Oo0'000'L JURIS) BNWIOS [RIBPaY LZ0T Add
0o0'coo'E JURID) BINWIOS [Blapad [Z0T Add
000000 L JUEIE) B|NWADS [BIBPEH 9Z0ZT A<
000000’ L JUBIE) BINWIOS [eI3pad STOT Add
000'000' L JUEBIS) BINWIOS [BIapad FEOE Add
0oo'000's 000'000" 000'000° L 000'000' 0oo'non°L 000'000" REZO0REEd sjefold Jedey poog) Jo siers
SALLMIYL JAMM-INILSAS
0oo'nee QNIINY HO3L - agL
000'059 Q 0 Q 0 000'05S 0ES008EEd Ijup ZZay pitng a3ndas JINGD
000°05L JUBIG) BNWaoS [Bipad PEOT Add
pDoD'0sL 4] o Q 0 000'05L AN, B0W - swawadeday ioieas|g
000°sz28’L JUBIG) BiNWIoS [Riepad LZ0T Add
000'SL0°L WEBIE) Bnliod |Bispad L[0T Add
000°sL0°L JUBSS) BN |Brapa4 9Z0T Add
0on'szg’L JUBLS) Bnlacd [elspad STOT Add
000°528°L JUBIE) BNWAC [E18Pad FZOT AL
0o0'sgo’L 0O0'SES'L aoa'sL0'L 0oo'sL0'E 000'sZe L 000'SES'E 0PsSongced weiboug Juawancudwy Bujgooy
00052’ L JuBiCy BNWIC [BI8pad LZ0T A4
000°0s0°L el BN S [Biapad LZ0Z Add
000°050°L juess) BNLIOS [Bi9ped 902 Add
000004 1 JUBIS) BINWIOS [Blapad SEOT Add
000°004" 1 WS BINUICH |elapad pEOT Add
000'SEE'S 000°SZL L 0po'oso’ L 000'os0’L QCo'ock's 0oo'ooL’L OrF008TEd welbiold Juswanoidw] juawane
000'S29° L WISy BINULICH [Blapad [T0T Add
000'SLL L Juels) ejnuiio [efapad L1202 Add
000'SLL ) Juels) BINULID A [BAR8 9Z0T Add
000'05E" L JUELS) BNULIC (esapad S0 Add
000052’ JUEIS) BINULIOS |eapad FE0T Add
000'SLE'L 000°5z9° L O0O'SLE'L 0o0'ssLL L 00005k 000°0SEE 0r000azZEd wesborg juawanosdw) wasis IvAH
SLNIWNIADEDINI STILITIIYS
6E02-520Z |6T0T BZ0L LEOT 9Z0T STOT HIBWNN JINYN LO3Arodd / AHODILYD
STVLOL Lo3roud
J2HNOS ONIANNS 3 LVdIDILNY
a juswydeny - dNN4d LNINJOTIAIA VLI
NY1d LNIIWIAOHdINI TVLIdVYD 6202 - §202




0L Jo g abed

SPLOE PeSaY vE-FL-5-euld AJQ WY 6Z0E-5208

029'90+"95 000°0SE'E 000°05E'¥L 000°0SE ¥l 000'05¢'vL 0Z9'900°0L SITIIHIA 2 LNINLINDI - T¥LOL
0ZS'esl SpUn4 |20 SZ0E Ad
OE9'95L 0 o 0 o 0Z9'951L OLOOFEFRd wewadejdsy esawer Apog | 01pey 3Mjod Hsued |
000'005'E (ggL) 8E0T Ad
000'000's JUELE) BINULIOS [BISPEH 0T A4
000'000'9 JUBLE) B0 [BI3DEH SE0T Ad4
000'000'9 JUEED) B0 (BISPE SEOT Add
000005 &L i 000’005, 000'000'9 000 000's 0 SATN. IHSHINAL-UORIB||0 ) BIe 3NU3RaH-SIIN
000'005'E UKD BINULIOS [B18P8S JZ0E Add
000'000's JUBED) BINLLIOY [e)8p3d SZ0T Ad
000'000'S JUBLD) BINULIOS |EJ3084 52T Ad4
000'005'9 JUEED) B0 |eJ3084 +E0E Add
C00'000'0Z Q 000'005'E 000'000's 000'000°s 000'005'9 SN dH3-SIN
0oo'ose IUEBIE) BN [BISPE BZOT A4
000'0se UBIS) BINULIOS |BI8PE [Z0Z Ad-
000°0SE URIS) BINULIOS (B8P3 GZ0E A4
000°05E RIS BINULIOS |BIEP3 GEOE A4
000058 RISy BINULLIOS |eJ8Pad #2008 Ad4
000’0541 000'0GE 000°058 000'05E 000058 00o'osE 0ZL0FSErd sebiesBdn weyshs ||
000'000°L 2410 6ZOZ A4S
000°000°Z el einuao [eiepad 80T Add
0oo000‘L ZdLl0 BZOZ A4S
000°000°Z JueiS) BNWwIO [BI3PAS LZ0E Add
000°000° L TJALO LZOZ A4S
000°000°Z BjNuID [BJ3Pad 8202 Add
000°000° L Zdl0 202 A4S
0000002 ejnWIo [BIapa4 5Z0T Add
000°000°L TdLO SZOT A4S
0000002 BINWI0 [BI3Pad $Z0T Add
0000005 E 000'000°E 000'000'E 0O0'000's 000'000'E 000'000°e 0£00L5Trd weibosg ABojouyaa] uojeuou|
ASCTONHI3L NOILYINEOINI
STTOIHIA B INFNDINDI
6Z0E-SZ0T |6TO0T BZOT LZ0T 9Z0Z SZOT HIFWNN JNYN LOAr0Md [ AMOD3LYD
STYLOL L23arodd
JJHUNO0S ONIANN A3 1Y dIDILNY
d3uswyoeny - NN4 LNIWJOTIAIA VLIN
NYV1d LNIWIAOHJINI TVLIdVYD 6202 - S202
ALIMOHLNY LISNVHL TYNOI93YH ANYIIAT D ¥ILVIYD




0l jo o abey
$PCLOE PRSNAY ¥Z-71-5-BUI A3Q YLE 6Z02-5208

649'L06'L9 9.5 LFR'T 945" 78T 9IS LFR'T 925 L6'gL SIS I'YE S123rodd 43HLo - Iv10L
G5 Ll JUBID) BInUUD [BISPa §202 A4
9.5 Ll UBIS) BINULIOS |eI8pad (208 Add
SI5 Lt RISy BINULIOS |E18D34 5208 Add
SIS Lt RISy BINULIOS |E12D84 5208 Ad4
SIS L JURIS) BINULIOS (22034 $208 Add
BLE'LOL'E QUG LiL 2511 QUG SIS LI GiG'LEL O¥X0:9L5d N3 L0ES - SBAY aISUL YIYON
000005 gL (g|L) 9zoz A4
000'000's UBIS) BINULIOS |B13pad STOE Add
0O0'005'EL {a8.1) szoz Ad
000'000's 1 OHL PEOT A4S
000'000'E UBIS) BINULIOS [BI8D3 20T Add
000 000'sk 0 i} ] 000'00s'sE 000'005'0E OZH0LSEHd Lug aur wpesyonap
SATN. loaL) 6T - 5202
00000004 000'000'2 0000002 000'000's 0000002 o00'000'E OE00L964d ag.l fouaBuyuoy pung wawdopEaag Y1y
000°00L wesbalg 10)id GOL FZ0E Ad
aon'oos ] 0 0 0 000'00L OFCOLSERd a0l uieson
000°003 {oeL) 9z0T A4
a00'00F waludo|anag so:0pan, LOOO £20Z Ad
000 000°L 0 0 (] aoo°oog 000'00¥ 0F00LSEYd apesbdn si9yjays sng
000004 spung 1e3o7 6Z0T Ad
000001 spuny |eso” §Z0T Ad
000 00k spung |e2o7 LZ0Z Ad
00000l spung [eao 920% Ad
000" 0oL spun |e3o" SZ0T Ad
000005 noo'ooL Qoo'ant 000'00L 0oo'aot 0oo'ooL GrO0LSEYd (samunuwiwog ajgear] Joj uonepodsues]) sapns Suuuely
HAHLO
SLO3rcdd 43H10
BE0C-SZ0Z [6ZOT geoz LZO0E 9z0g SZTOT HIWNM JINYN L23r0Md f AMD23LYD
SIV.L0L L23roud
324N0S ONIONNd AI31LYdIDILNY
d Juswydeny - ONNd LNINJOT3IAIA V1IN
ALIMOHLNY LISNVHL TYNOIDIY ANVIIAITD ¥ILVYIHD




0l jo L sbey

s -bi-g-leul
108 pasihay FE-Fi-5-euld A3Q Y1d 6208-SZ0T OO0 I B0 IS5 e 14
000'000'E JUELS) BFNWLIO [BISPES LZ0T Ad-
000'0oo'E JUBLS) BINULLIOS [B18084 SZ0E A4
00000’ JUEED) BfNULIOS |B13Pad STOT Add
000°000°L JUBIS) B0 B8P3 bZ0E Ad-
000'000'S 000'000" L 000'c00" - Q00'00a't 000'con’ L 000'000'L OLOOZEEZd Weiboud aunlonnsesu| ey
MOILYLIEYHIE Hoval
£95'rR8'02 000'000'E 498968 000'000't 000000 005'LBE'S $jeubls j jonuoy uiel] (B0 L-gng
000°5Z9°'S juBIS) BINLLLIOS |E2pad 20T A4
000°529'5 0 a ] 0 000'SES'S CPO0DEIEd sandQ tagrd ey e
000°000°S uRIS BInULOY [e23pad 8202 AS4
198968 RISy BINUUOY |ESRPaS JZ0T Add
000°000'% UBIS) BINULO [BISP3 9Z0Z Add
000'000'% UBIS) BINULOS |BSRPad SZ0T AL
005'Z9E'E jUuBIS) BINULO Y (B3PS FEOT Ad4
L9E'BSE'SH 0O0'000'E 58968 0:00'000' 000°000'F 005'ZIE'S 0Z000592d weibiosd apeifdn washs jeubig
SIVNDIS | 10dLNOD NIvaL
00S"ZE0'9E 000'S25"S [} 0 000°000"9 005" L' walsAg |eaaalg ee -qng
000'5L8'S JUBIS) BINUUOS [E5apRd B20E A4
000°000°% iUBIS) BINUUCS |EXPaS 5208 AZd
005 I86'E JUBISy BINLLO |EIBRE 20T A4
oS ZL8'Er 000's45°s 0 ] 000'000' 005" LE6'S IE(R wesboug Juawanoidw) uogeIsqnsg
0000002 jUEID) BINUUOS |BI3paS SZOT A4
000005 uBls) |RULOY [BRpRS FEOT Add
000'005'T ] 0 ] 000’0002 000005 0ZZ00512d ue|d apesBdn pue uawasejdsy 500
W3LSAS WolHLIT 3
S133rodd vy
BEL'006'ZT 000°000°L 000°000°2 6PZZTEY FIB'LER'T SL0'OFL ) "BNIFYE ONILYHIJOS LNIYIN SALLNIATSEL - Y101
000’000’ L JUBIEY BINUUO [B5EPA] BZO0E A4
000'000'L WEID BjnuUC [BlEpad LZ0Z A4
BFT ZEE' JUEID) BNULD [BIEPS4 9202 Add
FIg'IE8'T JUBIS) BIMUIO [BJ9P24 SZ0E A4
GLO0'0FL' L WEIS) BjMuwC [B1Rpa FE0E Add
261 '006'ZE 000'ana‘L 000'000'L GFEEZEY FLGIES'T SLOOFL) 0F00L9L5d "3 'quiisy @auBuSILER aaquanald
SININISHNENITY ONLLYEIdOSONYNI LNIYIN IAILNIATEd
SINIWISHNTWITH ONILYYIJOEAINYNILNIYIN SALLNINTHL
G6Z02-SZ0C (6202 BEZ0T LZ0E 902 S20Z HIBWNN YN L23rodd / AHO9D31VD
STWLIOL L23r0ud
F2HNOS ONIANNE A3 LYdIDILNY
@ juswiyaeny - dNNd LNIJNdOT3A3A VLY
NV1d LNIWNIAOHdINI TVLIdVYD 6202 - 5202




SPCLOE PESWAY YE-FL-S-BUld AT W1H 6T0E-520E

0L jo g abed

000'690' v 0008 0 000°002°9T 1] 000°5Z0°LL uoieliqeyay LoRels |ley Jjejo L -qng
000’0009 d¥SY LEOT Ad

000'000'9L a o 0C0'000" 9L 1] a AN SUCHE}S aurT Ui g
0o0'one'alL d¥SY SCO0E Ad

000'000'aL a 4] a 0 00000091 TN suones aul anjg g
000 Fes JuesS) BINWLIC [Rlapad 820 Add

000'Fire 000" FvE 0 i} 0 0 SN sijeday UOHIEIS BIBWABPLI,
000'00Z'0L WEES) BjNUUCY [Bl2pad 920T Add
00020 L JuEsg) EjnuUUC [RUspad +Z0E Add

000'SEE'LL a o 000°00E 04 o] Q00’5201 SN qeysy uoiels 19a0S ASE "M

NOILYLITISYHIY NOLLYLS TIvd

000'5Z8° 19 000004 L 000'00z'3L 000°SZTL"L 000'009'LL 000"00Z"LL uciejjigeyay Yol [jelol-qng
000'STE'S JUERD) BjNWUO [Blapad 9207 Add
000'006 WEIS) BjNuUC RIapad SE0T Add

000'SEE'9 [+] 0 00'000'SE6'S 000'006 a WM. ysep Jousiul JiyD g sueday ¢ yoely
000’008 Juerc) BINWIOS |BIBpE BE0E Add
Q00'000'0L (081! BZOT A
000'000"L JUEIE) BjNUUC [RUSPaY LZ0T Add
000’005 WEIC) BjnWUIC [RJapay FE0E Add

000'000'8 1L opo'oos 000000 L1 a o] 000'00s 0+000e+red uoieliqelyay yoel| 1se3 aur pay
000'005's Ovdl 1030 5202 A4S
000'000'9 JuBiDy BjNULID ] FRISPEY SEOE A4
000’0056 IvHL 1000 STOE ALS
000’000’ JUeIg) Bjnuuc Eispad vE0E Add

000’000 LE a o a 000'005'5 ) 000008 1 00F00BYTEd wesboud uonelligeyay jrEy b
000'00E JuBicy BjNUUC [BIBpR4 RE0E A4
000'00E Jueisy Bjnwlicd [elapa4 (208 Add
000008 JUELD) BINWUO RIapad 9802 Add
000'00E eSS BjNUUC [B19Pa4 SEOE Add
0D0'00E eSSy BINWIC [EIBpad FEDE Add

000'000" L 000'00E 000'008 000002 00G'00E Q00'00E QEL00BEE saonag Bunaauibug ey jleg-ug

6Z0Z-9202 (6Z0T 820¢ L20T 9202 5202 HIAWNN YN L23Arodd / AHO93LYD
SIVLOL 123r0dd
J3UN0OS ONIANND A3LYdIDILNY
a uswiyseny - ANN4 LNINDO1IAIA V.1
NV1d LNIWIAOHdINI TVLIdVYD 6202 - S20T
ALIHOHLNY LISNVYL TYNOID3IY ANVT1IATTO HILYIHD




S L0E PRsivey FE-bL-G-Buld A3 W1Y BZ0Z-SE0E

04 40 6 adeg

PELGES &2 198 1.9 0¢ 198 OFE EE 00054015 O00000FBY  O00ZFEGE S 1dl0dd v - I9LOL
L98FPL'EE L198°255°6 000'D5Z ¥l 000'05L'EL 000°005°0Z 000'ZE9' Lt 18314 3|yen [1ey tEI0L-qng
000'000°E JUBIS) BINULDS [B38pad FZ0E A4
000°000°E [} i} 0 0 0o0'000°E 0Z0008FEd sapesbdn awasejday wucleld [lBY Aveay
000'005"0k JUBIE) BNUUDS [Rs8pRd FZ0E A4S
00000508 ] 0 o 0 000'00s 01 0Z000SFEd sapeifidn VoRENYPOW JUNDNASEYY] [1BY- JHDH 9Z0T-Z20T
000'000°E SE1LS VOO BZ0Z Add
000 000°s Ju=ig) BnuuoY [BsRpad 8202 Add
00000528 JUBIS BNUUOS [RI3paS JZ0E A4S
000000708 IUBIS) BINUUOY [Efapad 9208 A4
0000058 (ogL) 9z0z A4
000'000°oL TALO 9Z0Z A4S
000'005" L JUBIS) BINULO [BS8pad GZOE A4
000'269'E loal) szoz Ad
00000008 TdLO SZ0T AJS
Q00'000°6 OELS- WIYON FE0T Add
000°000°" L ISy BINULIO [BiRpE bEOT Add
O00ZEL 7L noo'ooo’e 000'00s'Z 1 000'000'0lL 00000002 000'Z89'EE OFODEEELd weiboug juawase|dey ey Ay 6Z0Z-FZ0T
WYH90dd INGWASYV1d3d avo vy
LORES0 L UBIS) BIMUUCY [BFRP24 BZ0E Add
0000524 JUBIS) BINULOY [BH8P2S LZ0E A4S
000°05E S jUBIS) B|NUUOS [BXapad 920 A4
000000 JUBIS) BINUUOY (BRpRY 20T Add
LSEESSE LOB'Es0) Q00'0sE" L 0on'nse's 0 000'000' OTO06E9Yd awdinbz yiops 1By D AUl ey
000°00% RIS BInULOS [B5Rpad BZ0E Add
000°00G BIS) gnuloy [eRpR4 LZ0E Add
000005 JUBIS) BINULOS [BJ9pE 9208 Add
000005 IURIS) BINMUUO [E5Pad SZ0Z A4
000°005 eSSy BInuUUDS (BSR4 FZ0E Add
Q00'005'E 000°005 000'00s 000°005 000'005 000'005 Q0Z0SED LD wesbolg speg asedg jeiden pey
FEERFERRICELNRE
6Z02-SZ0T |BZOT BZ0Z LT0T 9z0z SZ0Z HISWNN JINYN LO2IMr0Hd [ AHOD3LYD
SIV.LOL L23roud
F24N0S ONIONN4 A3 1VdIDILNY
djuswyoeny - ANNd LNINHOTIAIA V1N
NV1d LNIWIAONUINI TVLIdVD 6202 - §202




SpCL0g PasIneY FE-RI-5-1BUld A30 VLY 6T02-5202

0L 4o 0} edeg

PEL'LOL'009 | oLL'ELs L L9B"L1E'sE EE' 0P LEL TSk FES SEL 192'0kL'LEL MNY 1d LNINIAOHJNT TYLIdYD 17101
[ 0G3ZES 2 [ 000'08Z 7 051 Va5 000005 F 005055y  000Be9® ONIME I LAY vid IVLI0L
FEPFLG LIS _ OLL'EBT L LLL'ESE LB EPE'OFE'OLL ZSE'CBE'0EL L9L'TOL'LLL aANnNd LNFNdOT1IATIA ¥LY TV.LOL
o0o'o0g's 000'GLE 000'sLE 000'SLE 000'sLE 000'00% SHILINID LISNYHL - TYLOL
000'GLE JUBES) BINULO, [2I3p3 G20 A4
000'GLE JUBID) BNULO0 BI04 JZ0E Add
000'G4E JUBED) B0 (218034 SZ0E A4
000°GLE JUEIE) B0 [BISPES SZ0T A4
000'008 JUEIS) BNLLA0 [BJ2034 F20E AdA
0oo'noa’L D00'SLE 000°cLE 000'sLE 000°'GLE 000'00g OE00086Rd (wayj Juswsaueyud) S8y WY paoueyuy
SHILNID LISNYHL
BC0Z-520C |6ZTOT 8202 LEOT 9z0%T SZ0T HIAWNN JNYN LO3Ar0dd [ AHOD3LYD
SIVLOL 1o3roud
F2UNOS ONIANNL 31V dIDILNY

ALIHOHLNY LISNVHL TVNOIDIYH ANVIIATTO ¥3LVIYD

d juswiyoeny - dNNd LNINdOT3AIA VLY
NV1d LNIJIWIAOHLINI TVLIdVD 6202 - 5202




IPE'CEC PIE ¢ E£95°055'/€E $ TyL'BL0'8B/T
818'vEL'TEE Z¥L'8E6'C6T vE6'TIZ'ESET
£ZS'L09'CT 128'229'sy 208'988VE
EVEOV6'9TT TS6'CB6'0ET L8L°TOTLLT
EYE'0r6'STT 7S6°€86'0ET L9LT0T°LLT
EVE0F6'OTT 756'€86°0ET £94'T0T'LLT
£98'L¥5'6ZT ELLTTIOWLT SLS'6E6'T0T
000°000°1E 000°000'92 000'005°SZ
000°000°0T 000'000°0T 000'000°0T
000°000'12 000°000'9T 000'005'ST
000'000°T 000°000°9T 000'005°SE
Z 000'000°s2 000'005 S
000°000'T 000°000°T 000'000'T
[98° /5 L6 ELLTTO'ETT SLS'6E6OVT
000°000°'ST 000°000'02 000'000'0Z
L98'L7S'T8 ¢ ELLT19°Z01 $ G/S'BEB'DZT
ueld ueld 128png
LTOT Ad 9Z02Z Ad STOT Ad

aoueleg Suipu3 palaalolg
aouejeg sujuuigag
(asealdaq) asealou]1an
saimypuadxy jeiol
fennp jendedjelo)
punduawdoasag - fepng jeuden
AenngQ jeuden
saunypuadxa
anuanay 18101
Siajsuel] 1e10]
pund anasay LU Jajsuel)
pun4 1endeD aunnoy iy Wwoll 1aisuel)
Siajsuel]
anuanay JaulD 18101
anuanay Byl
ALOIU| UBLLISaAL|
anuanay B0
sanuanay slels / |elapad 1e1ol
siuels) jenden a1e1g
SueIS) jeNde ) Jeiapay
sanusnay s1e1S / Blapad
sanuanay

sisfjeuy asuejeg pund 1uawdojanaq 1Yy

Juawyaeyny



869'1S'S BET'IVE'S $ 895'9/1°S
BETIFE'S 895'9/1°S 0ST'OrT'L
655°€0T TLS'YOT (zos'co6'T)
000°005°SZ 00505502 000'8ET 02
000°000°TZ 000°000°9T 000°005'ST
00000012 000'000°9T 000°005°ST
000°00S'Y 005'055'y 000'8E9'Y
000°0V6'T 005°066°T 000°8£0°C
000095° 000'095°C 000°095°Z
655°C0L'ST TLO'STLOZ 8EV'VLT'8T
655'€09°GZ TL0'STO'0Z 8EF'FL0'8T
000'00T 000'00T ¢ 000°00T
ueld ueld 128png
£T0T Ad 9202 Ad STOT Ad

4 JuBwyIeRY

aauejeg suipug paioaloid
aouejeg suluuidag
(asea102q) aseadou] 1aM

salnjpuadxyje1o]

sainypuadx3 jended JSyi0 1e10L

pun4uadolanad y1Y 01 Jalsuely

saunypuadxg jeydes JaUl0
Aenng 1enden jeloL

1eude] aunnoy
SoUBUIIUIR 19SSy

Aenng jended

pun4 |BJaUaS WO} J3JSUBI]
BLUDIU| TUSLWISAAUY

sisAjeuy aduejeg pundjeydes auilhoy Yid

sainypuadx3

Snuzfay 18101

Sanuanay



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-41

APPROPRIATING THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT
AUTHORITY'S EXPENDITURES OR OUTLAYS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR
(“FY") 2025 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BUDGET

WHEREAS, there are both legal and managerial requirements to establish the
revenues to be received for the upcoming fiscal year, including all taxes, user fees, and other
types of revenues, as well as estimates of all expenditures or outlays for the capital
improvement program of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) to be
paid or met from said revenue, during each fiscal year; and

WHEREAS, in order to meet those requirements, a Capital Improvement Budget for
the Authority for the Fiscal Year beginning January 1, 2025 and ending December 31, 2025
("FY 2025") has been prepared; and

WHEREAS, said budget has been made available for public inspection for at least ten
(10) days by having at least two (2) copies thereof on file in the Authority's Office of
Management and Budget; and

WHEREAS, the Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee of the Board of
Trustees discussed the proposed FY 2025 Capital Improvement Budget on May 7, 2024 and
one public hearing was held on May 7, 2024 with public notice given by (1) publication in the
Cleveland Urban News on April 19, 2024, April 20, 2024, and April 21, 2024 and Cleveland
Plain Dealer on April 17, 2024 and on April 19, 2024, and (2) postings in the Authority's Main
Office Building, at the Customer Service Center in the Tower City Rotunda, on the Authority's
Facebook and Twitter pages, and on the Authority’s website.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the appropriations for the current expenditures or outlays of the RTA
Capital and RTA Development Funds during FY 2025 are as indicated below and the amounts
to be expended and encumbered in each classification during FY 2025 are hereby set aside and
appropriated:
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUNDS

RTA Capital Fund $ 4,638,000
RTA Development Fund 177,102,767
Total Capital Appropriation $181,740,767

Section 2. That transfers of funds may be made in this capital appropriation budget
from one project to another, or from one department to another, or from one line item to ancther,
but not from one fund to another without Board of Trustees approval.

Section 3. That this budget may be amended from time to time in order to appropriate
additional capital grant funds that may be received in FY 2025.



Resolution No. 2024-41
Page 2

Section 4. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: May 21, 2024

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



7 1o 7 98egd Hoday anuanay

%00'00T HSB'6 B¥ILO6% § FZZ'ZESTOOT 5§  RLESEY'OIT 4 91S'6TT'R % EEAvPSTZ 0§ PIE'WLO0E § ANNE TYEINIS - GAAITITHE HEYD TYLOL
w%ERD %IEBTS FHITOZE STA'055°T 6I6'ISL'6 AR'SSL'L TIZ'SIT BE30LE"L HS¥D 40 5304NO5 HIHAD GNY SININISHNAWEY TWL0L
%000 - - - - - - - Y TYHIT3S
wELD WO ET SEP'9ES5 BEETHE PELLTE LLv'ERY 2997 FET'BIS SLdIT0TH SNOINVTIIEEN
w000 . las9'sz] 959'8T - (5e2'sh SEL'S - IMINLSISSY DNILYHISD TWHIOIS
wOr'y - ow8'an's = OpE'aL0’s POS'ISH'S - FOS'TSES [HZLWIN TO007 *ILVLS “THE303L0 IONYMALNININ IALLNINT B
RO08'D HST'EE BEQ'GTT B25'059 L] BE = 6E [HILWW 19207 "ILVLS "TWESTS) LNIWSSUNEINIZH LNYESD
%280 HEL'DS LLE'EVE ZE6'EIT G0E°L96 BOL'SEE FEE'SL ZToTar SOMNIIE XVL INYJOH'SHNININS
HEWD 50 53JHN05 HIHIO GNY SLNGWIS0Tamiag
RITE [t 2E] (otE"L65) TTHVER'E THOLIT'T [FE3T] BSS'SIE WEL'RIT INNINTH HIHLO TWLOL
w0 [T ER) [EENE] LLS'EET TIGSL Tos#'az) L96'TT £05'T EIHLO
HSET [25pe8T) [Aaa: ] OTE'DLY E6T'THE [spo'szTl SEQLST TE6THT ANCINI LSIHILMI
wIT'D WY SE BIT'EE £50'ES SET9LT EEO'OT 550'% BYT'ET E [ [wal MRETTIEL]
®eT'e lx0sel (aze'a) BTL'1ST 0O0'SLT . - - SROISEININDD 531 SLHSIY SN
wTPD [%psos) (Bs5'cev} OFL'SHE AL Ly LET'88 105'8T BE9'907T SHOISSEAINODSNOE5IINCDY SMSLLERNTY
FANIAFE HIHLIO
w0T08 &1zl (s08'c81) GTSE08'ER PIL'STS'AE [t6Z'ceT) LED'BOE'0E S2LT90°02 AMNIATH KWL ISN AN SIS THLOL
SOT08 %5z ol (=Y ETS'ECE'EE BRI [T62'LET] LLO'ROTOE 98415002 WL IS0 g SITHS
FMAIASE XWL 350 ONK 53165
SLE'E WIS GYT'T6b'T BSL'ELL'S LO5'P06'DT 65890 T58'R06'T S EL6'T SIWWH HIDNISSWD TWLOL
RETT WEDOF EZOETY £95'190'2 DS5'RLET LTl BO9'LES SEE'SEY SILLTOL 30N
®OT'Z WEWSLT PSELLY'T LOE'TFE T9TOTET SET'PbE - S5T'rwE S5VaN
%150 WL LLS OFE'BLy SS0'ER S0FTaS TES'EET 550'6T 959751 SOHYIIMYY LNIONLS
HOTT Hh'E ELE'60T PET'SZT'E LOT'SER'T [EEE'LE) DLL'SOS LER'LLY SFIV'S 13:01L/55vd
wI3'T IaLz] (Tro'ae) S SBT'IOC'E 3 FRETEETE S pTO'E 5 BEOR'IRL §  ITP'ESE 3 53UV H5D
BT E P ELTELE ]
TYLOL S0 % FINYHIR JONWHI [z w02 IDMYHD EZT0L bT0L
FTOZ juchy Jdy
AN 0L EWIA HLNOM LNFHHND

EZOT ‘0F MY ONY vZ0Z 0F U¥dY 0IONI GOIE3d IHL HO4
aNNd ToYINID - Y34 HO0lEd 0L O3WYdW0D Q3AI3I3H HSYD 40 L¥0dad
ALIHOHLNY LISNYHL TYNOISIH ONYI3ATTD H3LVIHD JHL




740 T afed

WELR 958°068'8  § TLE'GEYOTT §  9TS'A0S'TOT § 90T 695'95T'S YITPLY0E 5 SheLIv'sE 5
SOrTES EES'BIV'E 696°I5L'6 SEE'EEE'T HITTILL [ 665" ILE'L EEE'EEE
PELLTE PELLTE = PET'BTS VET'BIS -
- ObBaLe’s OPESL0°L - = rOSTSH'S FO5TSES o
[T loTEESY) SZO'08E SEE'EEET [3:66°66) [peT'EEE] 5E FEE'EEE
E GIE"L96 GOE"L96 - * TEC'ToF TEHTOr -
5451 TEN {0EF"TES] TRNLTT'E TI5808'1 [ET=EL] [Z9€'66T} RE'RST 9y’ L9y
[ETFE ] \wPb'STE) LT6'SL 95EFEE [EXTET] [T L05T 63586
%59°0T LSH'ER £5T'28E SEE'EEE WSE'OL 355'85 T66TPT SEEED
L 155'08 SET8ET 9’5017 (%62 TE) [eaz’s} ar1'se TERSE
[LredH] [[=dFand] COOSLT BI6'LAT . [oos eah = £os'ed
5E5°TE] {sab'sTT) ZBE LI LPELBY [%E6"LE) lseTs) 2E850T ETATLT
{%16'0) [T ¥ILS15°88 SEE"EEN'GH [3%£2°01] [£bs 96T E) SHLTI0°0T EEE"S5E"TE
{%1570) {zza'cral bTL'STY'ES SEE'EERER [ezoth [Lhs'a6E T) 9RLTI00T EEE'SSEZT
WTLOE SLTTLR'E L09"+06"0T TEE"EED'S REGTE TIT'SIL SPEELB'T EEE'85Z'T
SHEL'ED 065 i b 065 rit'2 COI'C00E B LT SEE'SET SEE'SES £000'00S
3ES 3BT SOb'0TS'T TST'0TE'T 55¢'508 BIOLLE o501 S5TFE BEREOL
e SDB'ZST SOb'295 000 00k %9379 559'79 959'29T 000'00%
00T EST'RT LOT'SER'E rE0' TR Iz ot 16TEET) LER'LLY 55L'709
(5e088) {goE‘oOE) 4 PECITEE 4 ESSETRE 5 wElD vaL ZTHESE 5  BET'ESE 5
WIS ANTTHTA T 139an4 TINVTEYAH TN, T 139an4
EITT TR ETY HANOIN INIEY D

PZOZ “0F NH4Y 0IONT QOI¥Id IHL HOA

ONMd TYHINID - 1390NE 0L O30 Q3IAIEFITE HSVD 40 LYOdIY
ALIHOHLAY LISNYHL TWNOIDIY ONYIIAITD H3193HD IHL

roday anuanay

QNN TWHINTD - GAAIIDTHE HED TWLOL

H5%2 30 532605 93HLO ONY SLNINISHNAWIEY THLOL

dHY TYHIaad
5LdI323H SM0ANVTIIISIN
TINVLSIESY SNILYYIG0 TrHIaas
[BOLW 19207 *ALVES "TWHIAH IINVRALNITIN INLLNGATHS
[HILW Te20T '3LY1S TwHI034) ANIWESUNEINEY LNVED
SOMNA3E XeL INYJOHE/DNININS

H5¥D 30 533805 LEHLD GNY ELGEL]

INNIAFY YIHLO TWLOL
HIHLD
ANCONI L53EILN
INOaNI TELNIE
SHOISSININGD 55371 SLHSE SMIYN
SHOISSENINCDSHOSSIINOONSILEZAGY
FNFEY EIHID

S30AISANS DNLLYEI S0 TYLOL
KWLASM P 5IWS
FITAEASH XYL 351 QN 53105

SIWVH YIDNISSTd TLOL
DMLLINDIL NS0
SSWd-N
SOYYIFUYS LNFINUS
SITHS AINDLLSS5HE
534¥d HEWD
BECF LT



{se6ee)
{me1570)
WOZ'E
{mEe¥)
{%0z'5)
TONTIETR

1S53 % aLa
¥ZoT

(shar0) FLECLLGOLE
(gl o) £L4'5L9'98%
(909070 BZEES5'BOS
(%L570) CEE'PELErS
(3w021) oLe’LgL’LES
TJONVHD AVNLOY
% OLA £20Z aLa
SNSHAN FZ0T 20T

699'LEL LLLS
QEE'EEL'BES
£00'50' 288
0L9'9LL birs
LEE'BSE'TES
ETTNESE]

aLa
LA

B1EWNSS $E(Z UBY) J1amo| (S58'6L L 'FS) %69 E
[ENI2Y EZ0E UBUL Jamo| (FFE'F2SE) %BY
ali

2lewisa F7Z0z Aew ueyy Jamol (EEZ'Z0E'ES) %l t FL
[enIRY £20Z Aejn uey) 1amo] (6ES'9EES) %rLL

PEB LLE'LOLS
0%
0%
08
08
08
08
08
BSL'OEL'BOLE  BZR'CZOLOLS (%L1} =L} | ooL'9s0'sLS
6LS'E0R'BBS  MPE'vRE'ZES (%iz'0L} (gL 0) | o8L'1o0'028
TYP'PES'EOS  2ZA'FIS'YOS %AZ'Gh %LL0 | £65'60L'SES
BPS'GO0'EFS  LBL'SHS'ORS {sege€) %00 | SES'Z0Q' LTS
ZTASUFE'IES  ISL'vRE'0ZS {segz'g) (360471 | 0L8'1BL'1ES
THNLOW TWNLOW ETLUTNEE] IONVHD | Twniov
ata aLa ATHLNOW 202 % HLNOW L AirA
£T02 zzoz SNSYIA TWNLOY €202
ATHLNOW SNASY3A
¥ZOZ ¥Z0Z

YEOT AVIN HONOYHL S1dI3034 1vNLOY
S3AXVL SN ANV STTVS
ALRMOHLNY LISNYHL T¥NOIDIY ANV I3AITD HILVIUD

puo
ewwng
000'00€'892S  €LL'LLE'1LOES S9E'PS6'YEES IWLOL
ece'ace'zzs [ L19'645°EES £08'65L'228 H3AEWIo3a
EEE'BSE'ZES | 0UB'BLY'LES SBg'Z20'LES HIBWINON
EEEBSE'ZEE | GLEREV'LES SE5'FOS'ZES HIBOLDO
EEEBSE'ZES | B6F LEV'EEE £¢6'812'028 HIBWIALIIS
EEE'BSE'ZES | LSS'BLT'TEE L0L'P00'ZTS Lsnony
EEEBSE'ZES | LbE'EET'0Te 0Bb'SPE'TES AT0r
EEE'BSE'TTS | CLTLFO'TES vEP'RLOEES annr
EEE'BSEEZS | BEO'ZET'SLE ZO5'6LL'EBLE A
EEE'BSEZES | LL0'BOT'0ES SEV'EIFBLE Tdd
EEC'BSEEZS | ¥59'BOS'SES LPQ'LERETS HOYWN
£EE'BSEEES | BO6LSP'LES ¥E0'659'6LS AdvnyEI
LEE'BSE'ZES | 2B5'ibSLES L51'FA8'0Z8 AHYINT
SIVINILS3 TWNLOY TWNLOY ERERET]
PZ02T £20Z P HLNOWN




%00°g 298 ELE'6E 000°008'% 0EL  STNLWENDIS JOLTIH JNTHA SEOZILEL  EZORILLAL
%005 0EE 05L'E6 000°000'S Lil¥] SALIHNDIS dOLTIH JWHA FEOZIAHEL ZEOEMALITL
Yk LG 9bg Ll oS g6t L ¥EZL SAYI0N 13411 JNTHA SE0ZIBTIDL  TEOEIREN0L
WFD'G GhG 815 026" LLO'E FEQ L SNYI00IN 1341LS g1H4 SZ0ZILTOL  ZEOBILENL
%0’ BEE av6 GOREEL' ) LR SMYICN 134118 DWTHA SZOEMIY  ZEOBMVENL
Yo+ GL5 GLE'LL Q00" 000'S SE0L SNYTOMN T341LS 87Hd SEDZOEIE  ZTOZNCHS
Yol CRE EEE'EOL Q00" 000'SE SEOL SNYI0N 134I1LS 87H4 STOZ/BE/E  ZEOZN0CR
%EE'E 0Z+ BEF'ELL 000" 00" 1 SEOL SNYI00IN 134ILS 8IHd SEOZILZMD  ZETOTILTID
%00°E g BE0'FFL 0L L L66'E £001 SNYTODIN T34ILS DWTHA SEOTEMS  ZZORIVES
Y00°E FLE SRE'ZL CZTLEE'¥ 06O SNYION 13418 8244 SEOZOME  ZEOZVFLIE
bt 65 GL9'E CZL'PRE'E 9F5 SAYTOTIN 1331LS B1Hd FEOZ/BLID  ZTOZIREIE
%G5G 1 - 3 BLLCLEIS 8 L OIHO 40 31vLsS OIHO UYLS-HILYW TW207  FE0RILG  FZ0Z/0SE
ANN4 HOLYIN 19201
YELE TOL'BLE $ aNnd LNFW3DH04NI MY TVLOL
%LE'S H g TEH 05 3 t OIHO 40 JLYLS OIHO UYLs FEOZILG  ¥ZOZIOCH
YlfL 1 5 0L IET § i J3TANS-HNYE ATH H23 AT ¥ZOEIWG  PEOTIOEH aNnd INFWIDH0INT My
Vel S % 3 £ZL'169'E H QNN4 IDNTENSHI TYLOL
Yd6L ! - OFO'EDL i HNYE ATH H23 A3 FZOEILE  FEZORDSP
%LEG ! 5 £09'PE5'R & ! OIHO JO JLYLS OIHO 1Y LS ¥TOEIHG  FEZOEMOES
QNN IoNVENSNI
LT 00¥'LL § BEF'30P'LE & ANNd TYEINTD TVLOL
%O0LE 1 = E0E"vPO'y i MMYE ATH d23 AT FZOE/WS  PEOZIOE
%06+ i - LT +RY 1 HNYE NOLDNLLNAH LNNODOY XYL S3IVS FZOEILG  ¥EZOTIOEH
%EE'S 1 = LEF LPD ! HMY'S DNd INNOJOY AJOLSND ONd FEORIMS  YEOZI0S
WOLE L - GLT'BLE ! WNYE ATH ONNA ALINLOY ITACTINT  +E0EMLS  FZOZ0ER
%155 L F98'E0Z'SL } QIHO 20 JLYLS OIHO Hv 1S ¥ZOEILS  VEOEZIOEN
%00°E LSE o'z 000'000'S SH0L SMI0DIN 1341LS g1H4 STORIEEH  EODTITEIv
WOT L HE 00’6 000'000'E SE01L SN I02N T341LS aTHd SZOEMLEIL  ZEOTILEN
WlB'L L # 5 008’ LOL 4 L WNY'E ATH LHNW ASH-L00W AINWHOHIW  #Z02IME  F20EGTIE amnd Tvy3INzSD
_ W9sy - § 829'882's 3§ QNNd LNIWTHILIH ONOE TYLoL
%96 L - 3 SZO'RAE'S 3 L HNYE NOLOMILNNH LIHEYIN ATNOW YZOZIWE  $EZOZI0EN QNN INTIWSHILIE aNoE
QT34 ALMNLYIN  LS3HILMI TYdIONIEd  SAvD NMOILNLILSHNI INIWNELSHI aLva ETET] ann4
FOYHIAY Ol SAYO  Q3anyoov IWLOL 3L ALIENLYIN 3SYHDUNA

FoVUBAY

Z joy. abey

¥Z0Z "0F MMV 40 SV

SLNINLSIANI AUNSYIHL 40 AHOLNIANI

ALTHOHLNY LISNVHL TYNOID3Y ONYI3ATID H31v3HD



HLSY

LT 955'8L0'T8

902'L86'6LE § SANNd TIY TYLOL ONVHD
T OEB'DFDL S igg'seg'zal & ANNZ IAYISIY TVLOL
%SG ! - POS LGZ'OL i OIHO 40 31VLS QIHO YYLS FEOSIWS  PEDZNOEF
SolB 4 k - £9E°66 I HNYE ATH H3 AT FEOSIHS  FEOZIOErF
Yal¥'S LFE 005" +6 000°000°S 255 SOANVIODIN T34ILS IWTHS PE0TILEEL  ETOEZMELID
SE'G arL FI9'EZL 000°'000's S60L  S31LENI3S JOLTIH JWNTHS 920C/eMS ETOEMaLG
Fal0'9 G40 L99' LG 000000 5601 SNYTIODIN 13IILS HIHd YE0ELAE EZ0ErE
TlE'G il LLF'06 000 000" 0k LEL S31LHNI38 JOLTUH TWHA G202 ECOZ/BESE
Ol'S #0g 9BY'Er 000°000°S LEL S3LMNI3S dOLTIH IWHA SCOZiBEelE  ETOE/REfE
it ¥iv Fra'vh 000°000°S LLG SAYTIO3IN 1341LS BHd SEQZILER  CROSILEE
WEE'G a5 SrL'ZTL 000°000's £00L SNYT03IN 134118 8044 STOCILLEL  EEDENLVE
TE0'S 65 0eF LL LESREG Lis SMYTI0DIN T3ILS 2714 PE0TIBE/S  EZDEIELE
S LG LED SET'LS 000°'000°s S60L SMYTODIN 124118 DTHS 9E0ZiLel  ETOErLES)
FaBL 0 GEL EESLS BOS'SHE' ¥ SEOL SMYIODIN T34ILS 49 Wol AHNSY3IHL SN FEOTISLILL  LE0TISHLL
SGEE g8t S28'FG L 000'000°S S60L SNYI0DIN T34ILS 49 WoJl gIH4 SE0LETIS  ZROTIETIS
960 EZZ ¥05'gL CHLPEE' ¥ S60L SOANTI0DIN 1341LS S0 woy 9244 PEQZIGIEL  LEDEEITL
SLE 0EL EEE'EE Q00°000"5 EQE S3ILEND23S dOLTIH B7H4 PE0Z/BEIE  ZEOZNER
Fa0E" ¥ g5 BLE'LL 000'000°G G601 SOYTHIDIN 13ILS g7H4 SE0E0EE  Z20ENTE
08¢ SEv 0865 000'000's SE0L SMYI0DIN 134ILS 87H4 SE0TI0E!9  ZE0TADESG
TESE G¥E BAV'S 000'000°S 60 SNYTODIN 134118 BHA SE0ir Y ZE0EPLE

QNNd INE3STH
88T 0¥ LG 5 95L'TLTEL & QNN TVLIdYD W1 TYL0L
TLEE'E EZ¥ Lk b6 Lg8°LaL’e SEOL SNV TN 1331LS g7H4 SE0T/LEs TEDEILTID
oG8 1 akL L95'E CLE'GPE'L ELB SNYI02IN 134ILS BIHd PEDZICEIE  Z20TISTIE
Ge2C°E BE = 005'280'6 b HNYE DNd LNNOD0Y AQCLSND INd PEQCILIS  PEOZIOCIF
SoL6°L 1 - s FEE 36 & i HNWE ATH Hl3 A3M FEOELS  FE0ZHLIP QNN TWLIdYD Yid
SeE¥"S - 5 LLE'BLEL $ QNNd NOISH3d TYL0L
YlS'E i = 690°E L¥' | |2 OIHO 40 31v1s CIHO HYLS FEOEILIG  FROEZ0SS
Sad67L i c 5 LFl'g £ 3 ANYE AZH H23 A3H FEOEIHIS FEQEIOES ONNd NOISN3d
TPy L18'826 % 6S0'6ZL'65L  $ ANNA HOLYIN TW207 TYL0L
MeLB L 3 = G89'E0L i HNYE ASH H33 AIA-NISWE HOLYD LA FEOZI0EM
ol L L - 0L'vi 3 Hh'E ASM HIF-LNVHD FEOEFLG FEOZIOESP
el 3 - ' k SITMS-HNYE ATM H33 ASA-HILYIW V20T FEOTILIS FEOEI0EN
BelS0 £51 BLB 000°000°' SE0L SMWI02IN T341LS a1Hd FEOEMESS  LEOZIDER
Hd50 €51 BLE°L 000'000'S a0l SMEI02IN 1341LS a1H4 FLOEM0EME  LEOTIOESS
WEYD 2L 195 000'000°s Saol SMYICOIN 13411 HH4 FEOE/OEre  LTOZroEe
00" g9 £ER'SH 000'000's Se0l SMYIC0IN 134LLS a1H4 DEDE/SVE AL
O0'E FOE QBF'EY 000000 LEL S3LENI3S dOLTIH QWNTHA SC0EMEEiE  ETOE/RER
REL'S FoF 209'68 000'000'o L 0Lg SMYICOIN 134LLS gHd SE0E/LENe  ETORMLERE
EE'S 995 FLETL 000'000°s E00E SNYICOIN T33ILE 8344 SEOSILLLL  CEZOENLLIE MOIAaNND HOLYIN T¥207
Q7304 ALIENLYI  LSIHILNI IvdIDN SAVO NOILNLILSHI LNIMMYLSNE 3Lva 3Lvd aNn4
FDVHIAY 0L SAVO  Q3Inyoov IWLOL W31 ALIENLYI 3SWHDHENd
JOVHIAY
20T ‘0F TddVY 40 SV

Z jog abed

SLNIWLSIANI AUNSYIHL 40 AHOLNIANI
ALHOHLNY LISNVHL TYNOIDTH ONYIIATTO HILYIHD



£BL'LIES

ST0'862'5%
oweiey puog

DSH'9LP'E SZTL'SELR § | 000"566"L STLORL 5| 52L'0pe = b SZLORL 00050806 bl

000"PS55'E D05'6ZE"L 000801 L 005'FEE 00s'vee E 005 FEE 0C0'0B5’s

000'8ES 'L 005"95k'L DOO'S1E"L 005" Ll 00s'Lirk e 005 L L 000'099's

0SL 96Ky SLE'06L'Y 000'sea’e SLB'SOE CL8'SOE " G48'G0E DOO'SEEEE

004 LE8'L 0s8'8GL'E $ | D00'068' L 058'88 $ | Dsg'gg = 058'88 0CO'0EY'E 3

YZO0T YEOZIHEL VEOTIEIE PEOTIHE - PEOTIHG ¥ToziLe FEOTIHD ECOZILITE
Juawalnbay Auswadnbay =iaefed 1apgefed Auawasnbay ragehed Bigefed bBujpueisinn
Iqeq |eyoL 321095 1520 [ediaupag Jsaaajy| BIIBG 1930 lediauLid EECEEHEE| |ediduud jeyo )

¥ZOZ "0€ TEdV 40 SY
SNLYLS OGNY 3TNO3IHIS I0INE3S 1830

ALMHOHLINY LISNYHL TYNCIDIY ANYTIATTD 4319349

0E0E 2]
LEOE 330
9E0E 950
5208 930
2eq

Ayangep
el

paipnbay apisy 125 Alyuow

I¥znz 4o} 2pisy Jag) aauejeg Juaing

spuogd 1210
hEY XEL S3(BS-GLOT S3URS
WA XL S2ES-gLOE SBURS
hEy XE L SSIBS-GLOE Sausg

hEY el SHES-YrLOT SaUSS

spuog



%SL'0

e

plas Aeq L puny Aauvopy funseau) s sienba praos, jeyeew &

‘spig funseal ) yjuow g 10§ spieil jusjeainba uodnoa sbesane Bumop #

Y%llO- %680 X301 (HIaNN) HIAD SAT131A IOVHIAY VLY
YGE ¥ %r0g WEE P ¥E'LI0BL 5 990'9LESIE § %HEL'S THOE'S YdF P SFEB69'S $ GLP'GOG'SEE g ALYa OL Wv3A
WeZ'G %EFG WOt L0g9'ags L £EC'EGL'LEE y3gwao3a
%H1TS %EEG REE T DLLEBL'L BFLLLY'ESE HIBWIAON
%HELG %EF'S %@y LPL'DED'T SOLLPOSLIE HIFOL20
WHITG %EES %OF ¥ FEB'LLZ'L #5068 18E H38W3ILd3s
W%BE'S %0Z°5 WET EOF'BLE'Z Q09°692'TIE 1snany
Habl'G %ELS %BEF #0'962" L LEL'EES'2IE Anr
WG %805 WOE't 29’9911 ZLT LBE'ZEE anr
%EB'F WEE ¥ %OE¥ EPTTLF'L VBE'BSE'ERE A
%EE' WEE ¥ %BL ¥ YEE'BERL SBZ 662008 %LTS WREFG LG ¥ LG0°96E"L B4b'S06'G8E RIEEL
B0 WLL bt LEZ'EFF'L 218" LBE"BLE S%hEL'G EE'S 05 BSP'BFE' L E16'005'S8E HOHYW
WEr't %AS ¥ Y%OEE BZE'SZO0°L SEEZIZ'SLE %aL'G %HEE'S YWER ¥ LEZ'GLE'L LLE'9ZE'08E AUYNHE34
Yol L %OZTF %ELE P5L'880°L $  9BR'00%'SIE & W%EE'S %OE'S Y%EE ¥ BEF'GEL L %  gr0'805'GEE g AN
EXRETT #Q731A aT3IA RETTCE] FONYIVE FARETTY #0734 GREITY GENPE] FONYIVE HLNOW
1IWHYIN QUYONYLS 3SVHIAY LSIUILNI IOVHIAY IANAINON ~ OHYONYLS =~ 39WH3AY  1S3W3INI JovdIAY
£Z02 YZOT

FZOZ "0€ MHdY HONOYHL 3LV0 OL ¥vdA
FONYIWHOIHId INFMLSIANI 40 AMYININNS
ALIMOHLNOY LISNYUL TYNOIDIH ANY13ATTD HILVIHD



GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHOQRITY
REPORT ON INVESTMENT EARNINGS (CASH BASIS)
AS OF APRIL 30, 2024

BOND RETIREMENT FUND
HUNTINGTON MONEY MARKET § 18,914.27
TOTAL APRIL 3 16,014.27
2024 YEAR TO DATE 3B,455.75
2023 YEAR TO DATE 65,462.98
GENERAL FUND
HUNTINGTON-SALES TAX ACCOUNT 5 5,619.83
STARGHIO £1,786.77
FHLB 45,000,00
KEY BANK SWEEP ACCOUNT 14,498.30
PNC CUSTODY ACCOUNT 14,378.14
MERCHANT ACCOUNT-KEY BANK SWEEP ACCOUNT 201.33
TOTAL APRIL g 141,484.37
2024 YEAR TO DATE 380,202.23
2023 YEAR TO DATE 470,310.50
INSURANCE FUND
STAROHIO 3 38,375.91
TOTAL APRIL 5 38,375.91
2024 YEAR TO DATE 136,293.10
2023 YEAR TQ DATE 78,756.19
LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND
KEY BANK SWEEP ACCOUNT 5 151.88
STAROHIO 227.68
TOTAL APRIL 5 379.58
2024 YEAR TO DATE 1,737.04
2023 YEAR TO DATE 2,356.22
LOGAL MATCH FUND
STARQHIO-LOCAL MATCH $ 229,107.36
FHLMGC 28,375.00
FHLE 52,000.00
FFCB 18,250.00
EFCB 3,300.00
FHLB 107,500.00
FHLB 14,250.00
KEY BANK SWEEF ACCOUNT 1,791.26
TOTAL APRIL 5 474.573.62
2024 YEAR TO DATE 2,092,585.66
2023 YEAR TO DATE 1,319,061.20
PENSION FUND
STARCHIO ] 8,300.53
KEY BANK SWEEP ACCOUNT 13.05
TOTAL APRIL 5 6,313.58
2024 YEAR TO DATE 25,424.37
2023 YEAR TO DATE 20,290.49

EMPLOYEE ACTIVITY ACCOUNT

KEY BANK MONEY MARKET 5 506.24
TOTAL APRIL S 506.24
2024 YEAR TO DATE 1.990.48
2023 YEAR TO DATE 74.80
RTA CAPITAL FUND
US TREASLIRY 62,500.00
KEY BANK SWEEP ACCOUNT 4,963.25
TOTAL APRIL 5 67,463.25
2024 YEAR TO DATE 107,611.02
2023 YEAR TO DATE 48,695.78

Page 1 of 2



GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY
REPORT QN INVESTMENT EARNINGS (CASH BASIS)
AS OF APRIL 30, 2024

RESERVE FUND
STAROHIO
FHLE
FHLB
KEY BANK SWEEP ACCOUNT
TOTAL APRIL
2024 YEAR TO DATE
2023 YEAR TO DATE

TOTAL ALL FUNDS
APRIL 24
2024 YEAR TO DATE
2023 YEAR TO DATE

INTEREST RECEIVED (CASH BASIS)

ACCRLIED INTEREST:
BEGINNING:
ENDING
TOTAL INTEREST INCOME EARNED

AVERAGE INVESTMENT BALANCE (COST BASIS):

AVERAGE YIELD ON INVESTMENTS:

APRIL

336,047.22
107,500.00
65,625.00
854.90

510,027.12

ur 4N

2,125,868.27
1,072,764.07

1,256,037.92
4,910,167.92
3,077,772.23

2024 YEAR
TO DATE

1,256,037.92

(1,841,783.00)
2,081,801.75

4,910,167.92

(1,295,725.00)
2,081,801.75

1,396,056.67

5,696,244 .67

Page 2 of 2

385,500,912

4.57%

385,905,479

4.47%



LLE YlS P %00°00L 655°'L0L'08E % 90,8664 §
09 Y%¥E'E WESES 000'S06'E0E 8FL16L'E08

L Y%LB' L %OE°L E0L'ELL'S E0L'ELL'S

L %LG'g %ER L vFG'LEB'BS ¥¥6'168'651

| %46} %900 044'422 0LL'2EE

L %eRY Y%ELE L¥L'E05' LI oF L¥L'E06'LL
ALIMNLYIN [«RETN TYLOL LINNOWY IVdIONIMd
IADYHIAAY IADYHIAY 40 INIDH3d Javd

¥Z0Z ‘0¢ THdY SY
OIT0414¥0d LNIWLSIANI 40 NOLLISOdINOD

01|0J10d JUBLYSaAL] [BJO L
S3IINAS JUSLILIBADS ‘SN
UN03oY 81ey ipau) sbulueg
oo JBIS
UnoJay daamg yueg fay
unoody 1aytep Aouop
JJuaInisu|



‘UOIIBLLLIOJUI {EUCTHEPR 10}
08-0T0T "ON UONMOsaY S3205Mi JO PIE0g PUR bZ( 3INPI0I] IMBASILILPY ‘(42404 rel]} Apogny 1sues) |euoi3ay PUBBA]) 818210 A4) JO SUON2NTaY pUe SaNY PaLIpoD 34N JO 955 Jaldeu? 0] J3ga. 3seS|d

ZEOT 'L Y2Uep PRIER ASUU TUJg “Y 01 uojuidQ) AJCSIADY JEISUOISSILULEDT) SIIT O1y0
BO-TTOT J3quinpy uoid () LoISSIULEND SIEYL3 0140
0Z0Z "9 Aew paaep (sneyy 2897 - WD) piojuag Sury |ASBUS 01 UBILID0 ASOSIARY 1JR35 UOSSIULIAD 5313 OIY0
L-BTZ0-4N-EQDET S2OLINN L0 [EWU0 )y LOISSIULLOD SIUIT 0140
[3) pue {Q)E0ZOT SwoN38s Bpo3 pasinay oo
ym azuendiod ur 3q 03 sienpLaupy) apgesdde Jog papiacad Sulsq §| UoBwIOL Iy

3LON
’ a8pay jany HUER SILEH OINE
Jensiday puog UO[EEN Y10k Mg JO yueg
SIUBWISAN OO Y LS
FEATTONEF ]
UNOIXY XEL 53|BS PUB JUAWINEY pucg yueg uoadununy
UG MOsI5] PAIYL Y4
PIEZIJIP2UT) PUEB IUNCIY [EIDOISHY Jueg Jnd
5321035 Sunjuen wieg yueg A3y

diysuoneas jo angepn UOER3IISY] [BIDUBULY jUBg

. YZOT 'O |Udy 0 sy
sdiysuonelay eV pue Suijueg
Aoyany ysues) jeuoiSay puejanaly Jajesug



	Meeting Notice
	Organizational Agenda
	COW Agenda
	Board Agenda
	Minutes
	Reso No. 2024-35
	Reso No. 2024-36
	Reso No. 2024-37
	Reso No. 2024-38
	Reso No. 2024-39
	Reso No. 2024-40
	Reso No. 2024-41
	Secretary-Treasurer Report



